
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOARD  
OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
MEETING 

 
 
  



CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Virtual Meeting – Public Access at ccdcboise.com 
June 8, 2020, 12:00 p.m. 

A G E N D A 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER ........................................................................................................................ Chair Zuckerman 

 

II. AGENDA CHANGES/ADDITIONS .............................................................................................. Chair Zuckerman 

 

III. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Expenses 
1. Approval of Paid Invoice Report – May 2020 

 
B. Minutes and Reports 

1. Approval of May 18, 2020 Meeting Minutes 

2. Approval of May 18, 2020 Executive Session Meeting Minutes 

3. 1st Quarter Financial Report, FY2020 

4. 2nd Quarter Financial Report, FY2020 

 
C. Other 

1. Approve Resolution #1658 - 9100 S. Eisenman Road - Type 2 Participation Agreement 

 

IV. ACTION ITEM  

 

A. CONSIDER: 1015 W. Main Street - Participation Program Type 1 Streetscape Designation with Main Eleven 

LLC (5 minutes) .............................................................................................................................. Brady Shinn 

 

B. CONSIDER: Resolution #1659 - Authorizing Purchase of Property Addressed as 1715 W. Idaho Street  

(10 minutes) ................................................................................................................................... Brady Shinn 

 
C. CONSIDER: Resolution #1657 - Authorizing the State Street Cost Share Application (10 minutes)  

 ..................................................................................................................................................... Matt Edmond 

 

V. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
A. Downtown Boise Association & CCDC (5 minutes) ........................................................Jennifer Hensley, DBA 

 

B. CCDC Monthly Report (5 minutes) ............................................................................................... John Brunelle 

 

VI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Deliberate regarding acquisition of an interest in real property which is not owned by a public agency; consider records that are exempt 
from disclosure as provided in chapter 1, title 74, Idaho Code; and communicate with legal counsel to discuss the legal ramifications 
and legal options for pending litigation or controversies not yet being litigated but imminently likely to be litigated [Idaho Code Section 
74-206(1) (c), (d) and (f)].  

 

VII. ADJOURN 

This meeting is being conducted in a location accessible to those with physical disabilities. Participants may request reasonable 
accommodations, including but not limited to a language interpreter, from CCDC to facilitate their participation in the meeting. For 
assistance with accommodation, contact CCDC at 121 N 9th St, Suite 501 or (208) 384-4264 (TTY Relay 1-800-377-3529). 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

III.  
CONSENT 
AGENDA 

 
 
  





CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP Paid Invoice Report - Alphabetical Page:     1

Check issue dates: 5/1/2020 - 5/31/2020 Jun 01, 2020  03:08PM

Report Criteria:

Detail report type printed

Vendor Invoice Invoice Amount Check Check

Number Name Number Description Date Number Issue Date

3659 Ada County APR2020 April 2020  Master Ground 04/27/2020 29,602.50 63675 05/27/2020

APR2020 April 2020 Surplus Ground 04/27/2020 12,761.75 63675 05/27/2020

Total 3659: 42,364.25

1139 American Cleaning Service  18545 Trailhead Cleaning - May 2 05/01/2020 974.18 11600 05/28/2020

Total 1139: 974.18

3838 American Fire Protection L 10085 Monthly pump inspection &  04/24/2020 185.00 63662 05/26/2020

Total 3838: 185.00

1316 Blue Cross of Idaho 2009400001 Health Insurance - May 20 05/01/2020 28,504.97 63658 05/01/2020

Total 1316: 28,504.97

1385 Boise City Utility Billing 1177 MAY20 848 Main St # 0447416001 05/01/2020 8.17 11622 05/26/2020

Total 1385: 8.17

4022 Boxcast Inc B57F3A3-00 storage fees 05/01/2020 13.51 11601 05/28/2020

Total 4022: 13.51

4082 BVGC Parcel B LLC 1600006299 11th & Front garage CAM e 05/01/2020 2,660.28 63663 05/26/2020

Total 4082: 2,660.28

3712 Car Park MAR2020 10th & Front - Grove 03/31/2020 21,913.39 11615 05/29/2020

MAR2020 9th & Front - City Centre 03/31/2020 27,035.39 11615 05/29/2020

MAR2020 9th & Main - Eastman 03/31/2020 22,440.57 11615 05/29/2020

MAR2020 Cap & Front - BLVD 03/31/2020 10,864.01 11615 05/29/2020

MAR2020 Cap & Main - Cap T 03/31/2020 29,786.51 11615 05/29/2020

MAR2020 Cap & Myrtle - Myrtle 03/31/2020 16,015.36 11615 05/29/2020

MAR2020 9th & Front - refunds 03/31/2020 155.00 11615 05/29/2020

MAR2020 Cap & Front - refunds 03/31/2020 760.00 11615 05/29/2020

MAR2020 9th & Main - refunds 03/31/2020 14.00 11615 05/29/2020

MAR2020 Cap & Myrtle - refunds 03/31/2020 1,272.00 11615 05/29/2020

MAR2020 Cap & Main - refunds 03/31/2020 1,332.00 11615 05/29/2020

MAR2020 9th & Front - refunds 03/31/2020 930.00 11615 05/29/2020

MAR2020 Cap & Front - refunds 03/31/2020 504.00 11615 05/29/2020

MAR2020 9th & Main - refunds 03/31/2020 1,158.00 11615 05/29/2020

MAR2020 10th & Front - refunds 03/31/2020 804.00 11615 05/29/2020

Total 3712: 134,984.23

1556 Caselle Inc. 101317 Contract support - May 202 05/01/2020 840.00 63659 05/01/2020

Total 1556: 840.00

4116 Civil Survey Consultants In 20015-01 Production Street and Gow 04/30/2020 8,802.00 11616 05/29/2020



CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP Paid Invoice Report - Alphabetical Page:     2

Check issue dates: 5/1/2020 - 5/31/2020 Jun 01, 2020  03:08PM

Vendor Invoice Invoice Amount Check Check

Number Name Number Description Date Number Issue Date

Total 4116: 8,802.00

1838 Elam & Burke P.A. 185359 Parking Matters 04/30/2020 4,057.65 11617 05/29/2020

185360 New URD - State STreet 04/30/2020 157.50 11617 05/29/2020

185361 WS District Amendment 04/30/2020 247.50 11617 05/29/2020

185362 101-0 General 04/30/2020 1,732.50 11617 05/29/2020

185363 River Myrtle Implement Act 04/30/2020 540.00 11617 05/29/2020

185364 WS District 04/30/2020 45.00 11617 05/29/2020

Total 1838: 6,780.15

4159 Energreen Development MAY2020 535 S. 15th St - River Stre 05/15/2020 150,000.00 11618 05/29/2020

Total 4159: 150,000.00

3695 Guho Corp. 190101063-0 2019 Streetscapes 04/30/2020 453,610.93 11619 05/29/2020

19010163-06 2019 Streetscapes 03/31/2020 157,466.21 11619 05/29/2020

Total 3695: 611,077.14

3810 Hummel Architects PLLC 9492 9th & Main Elevator Refurb 04/30/2020 195.00 11602 05/28/2020

9493 Prototype parking structure 04/30/2020 1,020.00 11602 05/28/2020

Total 3810: 1,215.00

2129 Idaho Blueprint & Supply C 0000451323 district maps 03/17/2020 985.40 11603 05/28/2020

Total 2129: 985.40

2165 Idaho Power 6607 APR20 9th St outlets  #220040660 04/30/2020 3.87 11599 05/18/2020

7995 APR20 9th & State # 2201627995 04/30/2020 3.50 11598 05/15/2020

Total 2165: 7.37

3900 Idaho Records Manageme 0139201 Records Storage 05/01/2020 89.78 11604 05/28/2020

Total 3900: 89.78

2186 Idaho Statesman 263244 APR Legal Notices 04/30/2020 85.60 63664 05/26/2020

Total 2186: 85.60

3965 In The Bag Promotions Inc. 14381 CCDC Branded Apparel Or 05/14/2020 1,489.89 63665 05/26/2020

Total 3965: 1,489.89

3966 Involta LLC 0049238 Website Hosting Services 05/01/2020 1,347.90 63666 05/26/2020

Total 3966: 1,347.90

3808 Jed Split Creative 2353 Core Concepts - New Desi 03/31/2020 5,700.00 63676 05/27/2020

2354 2019 Annual Report 03/31/2020 6,972.65 63676 05/27/2020

Total 3808: 12,672.65

2288 Jensen Belts Associates 1765CD-2 Westside Park DD-CD-CA 04/30/2020 13,860.86 11620 05/29/2020



CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP Paid Invoice Report - Alphabetical Page:     3

Check issue dates: 5/1/2020 - 5/31/2020 Jun 01, 2020  03:08PM

Vendor Invoice Invoice Amount Check Check

Number Name Number Description Date Number Issue Date

Total 2288: 13,860.86

3910 Joey Chen APR2020 AGA 2020 Professional De 04/15/2020 205.00 11621 05/27/2020

Total 3910: 205.00

2360 Kittelson & Associates Inc. 0109587 5th & Myrtle - Signalize Cro 03/31/2020 960.00 11605 05/28/2020

Total 2360: 960.00

4136 Mintify LLC 151 Management Training 04/30/2020 4,000.00 11606 05/28/2020

Total 4136: 4,000.00

2567 Mountain States Appraisal ID2-200088 Appraisal of 1715 W. Idaho  05/15/2020 2,900.00 11607 05/28/2020

Total 2567: 2,900.00

3969 Pacific Backflow LLC INV19-00472 Backflow Test - 516 S 9th S 05/16/2020 40.00 63667 05/26/2020

INV19-00473 Backflow Test - 437 S 9th S 05/16/2020 40.00 63667 05/26/2020

Total 3969: 80.00

2774 Pro Care Landscape Mana 32180 Landscape Maintenance -  04/30/2020 9.27 63668 05/26/2020

32181 Landscape Maintenance -  04/30/2020 339.77 63668 05/26/2020

32257 Landscape Maintenance -  04/30/2020 249.00 63668 05/26/2020

Total 2774: 598.04

2798 Quadrant Consulting Inc. 11009 5th St Utility Undergroundi 04/30/2020 414.00 11608 05/28/2020

Total 2798: 414.00

4125 Red Sky Inc 41514 Communication Services 04/30/2020 4,000.00 63669 05/26/2020

Total 4125: 4,000.00

3896 Rim View LLC MAY2020 Monthly Rent and NNN - Tr 05/01/2020 13,265.81 63660 05/01/2020

Total 3896: 13,265.81

3796 Scheidt & Bachmann USA I 0000041124 April 2020 Merchant Fees 04/30/2020 28.80 11609 05/28/2020

Total 3796: 28.80

3542 Security LLC - Plaza 121 MAY2020 Office rent - May 2020 05/01/2020 13,620.75 63661 05/01/2020

Total 3542: 13,620.75

3974 Stability Networks Inc. 32239 IT Services - FY2020 04/30/2020 2,090.00 11610 05/28/2020

32239 Phone System Support 04/30/2020 85.00 11610 05/28/2020

32239 AppRiver SecureTide 04/30/2020 40.00 11610 05/28/2020

32239 Azure Cloud Backup 04/30/2020 420.00 11610 05/28/2020

32318 server rack 04/30/2020 517.82 11610 05/28/2020



CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP Paid Invoice Report - Alphabetical Page:     4

Check issue dates: 5/1/2020 - 5/31/2020 Jun 01, 2020  03:08PM

Vendor Invoice Invoice Amount Check Check

Number Name Number Description Date Number Issue Date

Total 3974: 3,152.82

3696 Strata BO200146 6th Street Streetscape Imp 04/30/2020 5,128.75 63677 05/27/2020

Total 3696: 5,128.75

3242 Suez Water Idaho 0025 MAY20 437 S 9th St irri #06006688 05/11/2020 35.99 11623 05/28/2020

2853 MAY20 Eastman office #06000337 05/11/2020 80.89 11624 05/28/2020

4259 MAY20 516 S 9th St irri #06006391 05/11/2020 42.34 11625 05/28/2020

8504 MAY20 Grove & 10th #060035756 05/11/2020 82.67 11626 05/28/2020

Total 3242: 241.89

4109 Syringa Networks LLC 20339 MAY2 internet & data 05/01/2020 642.15 63670 05/26/2020

Total 4109: 642.15

4074 The Potting Shed 17951 Interior Plant Maint. 04/30/2020 65.00 63671 05/26/2020

Total 4074: 65.00

3923 Trailhead 125 Idaho Power - 50% 04/30/2020 118.50 11611 05/28/2020

125 Intermountain Gas - 50% 04/30/2020 99.67 11611 05/28/2020

Total 3923: 218.17

3233 United Heritage 02014-001 A Disability insurance - April  04/30/2020 1,421.52 63672 05/26/2020

02014-001 M Disability insurance - May  05/01/2020 1,497.75 63672 05/26/2020

Total 3233: 2,919.27

3841 VoiceText Communications CCDEVC-42 Conference calls 04/20/2020 16.98 11612 05/28/2020

Total 3841: 16.98

3365 Westerberg & Associates 233 Legislative Advisement Ser 04/30/2020 5,000.00 11613 05/28/2020

Total 3365: 5,000.00

3374 Western States Equipment IN001285775 Bldg 8 generator monthly i 04/23/2020 276.25 63673 05/26/2020

IN001292482 Bldg 8 generator monthly i 04/30/2020 647.74 63673 05/26/2020

Total 3374: 923.99

3990 Xerox Corporation 010213515 Copier Lease 04/30/2020 245.79 11614 05/28/2020

Total 3990: 245.79

4158 Zoom Video Communicatio INV2013591 video conference service a 05/11/2020 405.51 63674 05/26/2020

Total 4158: 405.51

Grand Totals: 1,077,981.05



 
CCDC Board of Commissioners 05-18-2020 Meeting Minutes 1 

MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Virtual Meeting 
Boise, ID 83702 

May 18, 2020 12:00 p.m. 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Board Members appeared remotely, as did John Brunelle, CCDC Executive Director, Mary 
Watson, General Counsel & Contracts Manager, Matt Edmond, Assistant Director – Parking & 
Mobility, and Ryan Armbruster, CCDC Legal Counsel.  
 
Ross Borden, Finance and Administration Director, and Sarah Jones, Administrative Assistant, 
were present at the CCDC physical office location. 
 
Present: Chairman Dana Zuckerman, Commissioner Ryan Woodings, Commissioner David 
Bieter, Commissioner Gordon Jones, Commissioner Latonia Haney Keith, Commissioner 
Maryanne Jordan, Commissioner Lauren McLean, and Commissioner Kate Nelson. 
 
Roll call was taken, by Ryan Armbruster, Agency Legal Counsel confirming quorum. 
 
Chairman Zuckerman convened the meeting with a quorum at 12:00 p.m. 
 
II. AGENDA CHANGES/ADDITIONS: 
 
There were no changes to the agenda.  
 
III. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Expenses 
1. Approval of Paid Invoice Report – March 2020 
2. Approval of Paid Invoice Report – April 2020 
 

B. Minutes and Reports 
1. Approval of April 13, 2020 Meeting Minutes 
 

C. Other 
1. Approve Resolution #1656 – Adopt the Families First Coronavirus Response Act 

Leave Policy 
 

Commissioner Kate Nelson joined at 12:02 p.m. 
 

Commissioner Woodings made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
Commissioner Zuckerman recused herself from voting on the April 13, 2020, Minutes, due to her 
absence from that meeting. 
 
Commissioner Jordan seconded. 
Roll Call  
Each said Aye. The motion carried. 7-0-1 



 
CCDC Board of Commissioners 05-18-2020 Meeting Minutes 2 

IV. ACTION ITEMS  
 

A. CONSIDER: Resolution #1650 – Approving the Lease of 500 S.8th Street (Trailhead) 
 
Mary Watson, General Counsel & Contracts Manager, gave a report. 
 
Commissioner Woodings moved to adopt Resolution #1650, Approving the Lease of 500 
S. 8th Street from Rim View LLC. 
 
Commissioner Jones recused himself from voting on the Lease of 500 S. 8th Street, due 
to his board position with Trailhead. 
 
Commissioner Bieter seconded. 
Roll Call 
Each said Aye with one abstention. The motion carried 7-0-1 
 

B. CONSIDER: Resolution #1651 – Approving the Entrepreneurship Consulting 
Agreement (Trailhead) 
 
Mary Watson, General Counsel & Contracts Manager, gave a report. 
 
Commissioner Woodings moved to adopt Resolution #1651, Approving the 
Entrepreneurship Consulting Agreement with the City of Boise and Actuate Boise, Inc., for 
the professional services related to Trailhead. 
 
Commissioner Jones recused himself from voting on the Lease of 500 S. 8th Street, due 
to his board position with Trailhead. 
 
Commissioner Jordan seconded. 
Roll Call 
Each said Aye with one abstention. The motion carried 7-0-1 
 

C. CONSIDER: Resolution #1652 – Authorizing Interagency Agreement with ACHD & 
City of Boise for Gowen Road Bridge Project.   
 
Matt Edmond, Assistant Director – Parking & Mobility, gave a report.   
 
Commissioner Woodings moved to adopt Resolution #1652 authorizing the Executive 
Director to execute an Interagency Agreement with ACHD and City of Boise for Gowen 
Road Bridge Conduit Construction. 
 
Commissioner Jordan seconded. 
Roll Call 
Each said Aye. The motion carried 8-0 
 
 



 
CCDC Board of Commissioners 05-18-2020 Meeting Minutes 3 

D. CONSIDER: Resolution #1654 – Amending the Cost Share Agreement with ACHD 
for Gowen Road Bridge Project.   
 
Matt Edmond, Assistant Director – Parking & Mobility, gave a report. 
 
Commissioner Woodings moved to adopt Resolution #1654 authorizing the Executive 
Director to execute the new Cost Share Agreement with Ada County Highway District for 
shared construction costs of Gowen Road Bridge #2110. 
 
Commissioner Jordan seconded. 
Roll Call 
Each said Aye. The motion carried 8-0 
 

E. CONSIDER: Resolution #1653 – Professional Services Agreement with MIG for State 
Street Corridor Work and Public Engagement. 
 
Matt Edmond, Assistant Director – Parking & Mobility, gave a report.   
 
Commissioner Woodings moved to adopt Resolution #1653 and authorize the 
Professional Services agreement with MIG, for the State Street District Corridor 
Framework Plan and Public Engagement. 
 
Commissioner Haney Keith seconded. 
Roll Call 
Each said Aye. The motion carried 8-0 

 
V. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. CCDC Monthly Report  
 
John Brunelle, CCDC Executive Director, gave a report. 

 
VI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Woodings to go into executive session at 12:46 p.m. to 
deliberate regarding acquisition of an interest in real property which is not owned by a public 
agency; consider records that are exempt from disclosure as provided in chapter 1, title 74, Idaho 
Code; and communicate with legal counsel to discuss the legal ramifications and legal options for 
pending litigation or controversies not yet being litigated but imminently likely to be litigated [Idaho 
Code Section 74-206(1) (c) (d) and (f)]. 

Commissioner Jordan seconded the motion. 

A roll call vote was taken: 

Commissioner Nelson: Aye 
Commissioner Haney Keith: Aye 



 
CCDC Board of Commissioners 05-18-2020 Meeting Minutes 4 

Commissioner Jones: Aye 
Commissioner Jordan: Aye 
Commissioner Bieter: Aye 
Commissioner McLean: Aye 
Commissioner Woodings: Aye 
Commissioner Zuckerman: Aye 
 
The motion carried 8-0. 

In executive session, the Board addressed consideration of acquisition of real property which is 
not owned by a public agency and communicated with counsel to discuss the legal ramifications 
and legal options for pending litigation. 

VII. EXECUTIVE MEETING ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Woodings to adjourn executive session at 1:14 p.m. and 
return to the public meeting. Commissioner Bieter seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken. 

Commissioner Nelson: Aye 
Commissioner Haney Keith: Aye 
Commissioner Jones: Aye 
Commissioner Jordan: Aye 
Commissioner Bieter: Aye 
Commissioner Mclean: Aye 
Commissioner Woodings: Aye 
Commissioner Zuckerman: Aye 
 
The Board returned to the open Public Meeting, through remote access, for a formal motion to 
adjourn at 1:15 p.m.  
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Woodings to adjourn the board meeting at 1:16 p.m. 
Commissioner McLean seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken; each said Aye. The 
motion carried 8-0. 
 
ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION ON THE 8th DAY OF June 2020. 
 
 

       
Dana Zuckerman, Chair 

 
 

       
Lauren McLean, Secretary 



CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Board of Commissioners Special Meeting 

Virtual Meeting – Public Access at ccdcboise.com 
May 18, 2020, 12:00 p.m. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION TRANSCRIPT 

 
Chair Zuckerman:  Thank you very much John.  I see we have a need for the Executive 
Session today.  John Brunelle:  Yes 
 
Chair Zuckerman:  I cannot see the whole, Ryan do you want to do this? 
 
Commissioner Woodings:  I move to enter into Executive Session to Deliberate regarding 
acquisition of an interest in real property which is not owned by a public agency; consider 
records that are exempt from disclosure as provided in chapter 1, title 74, Idaho Code; and 
communicate with legal counsel to discuss the legal ramifications and legal options for pending 
litigation or controversies not yet being litigated but imminently likely to be litigated [Idaho Code 
Section 74-206(1) (c), (d) and (f)].  
 
Commissioner Jordan:  Second 
 
Chair Zuckerman:  Thank you, and now a roll vote please. 
 
Ryan Armbruster: Commissioner Nelson 
 
Commissioner Nelson:  Aye 
 
Ryan Armbruster:  Commissioner Keith 
 
Commissioner Keith:  Aye 
 
Ryan Armbruster:  Commissioner Jones 
 
Commissioner Jones:  Aye 
 
Ryan Armbruster:  Commissioner Jordan 
 
Commissioner Jordan:  Aye 
 
Ryan Armbruster:  Commissioner Bieter 
 
Commissioner Bieter:  Aye 
 
Ryan Armbruster:  Commissioner Mclean 
 
Commissioner McLean:  Aye 
 
Ryan Armbruster:  Commissioner Woodings 
 
Commissioner Woodings:  Aye 
 
Ryan Armbruster: Commissioner Zuckerman 
 
Commissioner Zuckerman:  Aye 
 



Ryan Armbruster:  Motion passes with the two-thirds needed to go into Executive Session.  So 
we will now be in Executive Session. 
 
Chair Zuckerman:  Okay do we have a motion. 
 
Ryan Armbruster:  Madam Chair, just again for the record, let it reflect that we are returning to 
the open session at 1:15 pm and the only item left on the agenda is a formal motion to return.   
 
Chair Zuckerman:  Thank you. Is it alright to go ahead with the motion then? 
 
Ryan Armbruster: Yes 
 
Commissioner Woodings:  I move to adjourn.  
 
Commissioner Jordan:  Second 
 
Ryan Armbruster:  Alright, last roll call for the day.  Commissioner Nelson 
 
Commissioner Nelson:  Aye 
 
Ryan Armbruster:  Commissioner Keith 
 
Commissioner Keith:  Aye 
 
Ryan Armbruster: Commissioner Jones 
 
Commissioner Jones:  Aye 
 
Ryan Armbruster:  Commissioner Jordan 
 
Commissioner Jordan:  Aye 
 
Ryan Armbruster:  Commissioner Bieter 
 
Commissioner Bieter:  Aye 
 
Ryan Armbruster:  Commissioner McLean 
 
Commissioner Woodings:  She just came on. 
 
Ryan Armbruster:  Commissioner Mclean 
 
Commissioner McLean:  Aye 
 
Ryan Armbruster:  Commissioner Woodings 
 
Commissioner Woodings:  Aye 
 
Ryan Armbruster:  Commissioner Zuckerman 
 
Commissioner Zuckerman:  Aye 
 
Ryan Armbruster:  Alright we are adjourned. 
 
Meeting at adjourned at 1:16 pm 



Through FIRST QUARTER

FY2020 Year‐To‐Date Financial Report (Unaudited)

October 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019



 
 
 
 
 

FY2020 Year‐to‐Date Financial Report (Unaudited) 
Through FIRST QUARTER 

October 1, 2019 – December 31, 2019 

 

REVENUES:  

The actual tax  increment revenues for the first quarter were $14,593.  In January 2020 
(subsequent  to  the 1st quarter end), we have  received approximately $9.2 million  tax 
increment revenue. At the end of January, we have received approximately 60% of the 
annual budgeted tax increment revenue for FY2020, which is consistent with expectation. 

Total parking revenues were generally consistent with expectation, at 23% of the total 
annual budget amount at the end of the first quarter. Some of the variance is attributable 
to a PARCS (Parking Access and Control System) failure affecting all Agency garages at the 
start of the holiday season.  

 

EXPENSES:  

As of December 31, 2019, Agency’s operating expenses were 20% of the annual budget 
amount.    Capital  outlay  expenditures  for  the  first  quarter  were  at  2%  of  the  annual 
budget.   Most  of  the  expenses  for  capital  projects  hit  during  the  construction  season 
which corresponds with the Agency’s third and fourth quarters. Capital projects planning 
and design were underway in the first quarter. 

 

 

 

ABOUT THIS REPORT.  This report includes all budgeted Agency funds. 
Revenues 

 Ada County distributes property tax revenue to local governments monthly as received; however, almost 
99% of the total budgeted amount is distributed twice a year in January (about 60%) and in July (about 40%) 
after property tax due dates (December and June). 

 Parking garage revenue is generated and received daily throughout the year. 

 Fund Balance: Transfer‐in if revenues exceed expenses, transfer‐out if expenses exceed revenues.  
Expenses 

 Debt service payments are made twice per year: interest only in March; principal & interest in September. 

 Capital projects are typically designed and planned during the first half of a fiscal year with construction and 
most expenses occurring in the second half.  

 Revenues received from sub‐lessee Civic Plaza are equal to the expenses distributed to Ada County for the 
Ada County Courthouse Master/Surplus Ground Lease. They are passed through only. 

 



FY2020 BUDGET SUMMARY through 1st quarter December is month 3 of 12; FY2020 is 25% complete.

FY2020 FY2020 % Actual 

Total Q1 To

REVENUE SUMMARY (Original) Budget Actual Total Budget

Revenue from Operations

Revenue Allocation (Tax Increment)............................................................................................. 16,830,000             14,593                     0%

Parking Revenue............................................................................................................................ 8,776,542               2,014,626               23%

Other Revenues (Various Reimbursements)................................................................................. 5,319,500               42,350                     1%

  Subtotal 30,926,042$          2,071,569$             7%

Other Sources

Misc. Revenues (Grants/Leases/Property Transactions)............................................................... 579,543                  319,360                  55%

Bond Financing............................................................................................................................... 14,600,000             ‐                           0%

Use of (Transfer to) Working Capital Fund.................................................................................... 22,793,939             1,277,499               6%

  Subtotal 37,973,482$          1,596,859$             4%
                         

Subtotal ‐ Revenue from Operations 68,899,524$          3,668,427$            5%

Pass‐Through Revenue

Ada County Courthouse Corridor Leases....................................................................................... 420,111                  25,778                     6%

  Subtotal 420,111$                25,778$                  6%
                         

TOTAL REVENUE 69,319,635$          3,694,205$            5%

FY2020 FY2020 % Actual 

Total Q1 To

EXPENSE SUMMARY (Original) Budget Actual Total Budget

Operating Expense

Personnel Costs............................................................................................................................. 2,472,000               539,903                  22%

Services & Operations.................................................................................................................... 2,983,851               747,463                  25%

Facilities Management................................................................................................................... 908,057                  258,938                  29%

Professional Services ..................................................................................................................... 2,155,000               123,704                  6%

  Subtotal 8,518,908$             1,670,009$             20%

Debt Service & Contractual Obligations

Debt Service................................................................................................................................... 4,329,316               ‐                           0%

Contractual Obligations (included in CIP)...................................................................................... 3,216,000               934,999                  29%

  Subtotal 7,545,316$             934,999$                12%

Capital Outlay

Office Furniture/Computer Equipment......................................................................................... 74,500                     92,910                     125%

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP)........................................................................................ 49,442,300             597,058                  1%

Parking Reinvestment Plan (PRP).................................................................................................. 2,335,000               261,518                  11%

Mobility Projects............................................................................................................................ 983,500                  111,935                  11%

  Subtotal 52,835,300$          1,063,420$             2%

Subtotal ‐ Expenses for Operations 68,899,524$          3,668,428$            5%

Pass‐Through Expense

Ada County Courthouse Corridor Leases....................................................................................... 420,111                  25,778                     6%

  Subtotal 420,111$                25,778$                  6%                         

TOTAL EXPENSE 69,319,635$          3,694,206$            5%



FY 2019 FY 2020

Total Total YTD YTD YTD YTD

Activity Actual Budget Budget Actual Variance $ Variance %

 TIF BY DISTRICT

   River‐Myrtle / Old Boise 10,546,366 11,100,000 102,758 11,143 (91,615) ‐89%

   Westside 3,723,464 4,100,000 4,989 0 (4,989) ‐100%

   30th Street 645,687 800,000 119 3,450 3,331 2799%

   Shoreline n/a 120,000 0 0 0 0%

   Gateway East n/a 710,000 0 0 0 0%

   TOTAL RAD 14,915,516 16,830,000 107,866 14,593 (93,273) ‐86%

 PARKING BY GARAGE

  9th & Main (Eastman) 1,509,721 1,535,469 386,964 395,454 8,490 2%

  Capitol & Main (Cap Terrace) 2,147,564 2,243,138 579,168 461,937 (117,232) ‐20%

  9th & Front (City Centre) 1,747,722 1,807,582 450,240 429,674 (20,566) ‐5%

  10th & Front (Grove st.) 1,166,458 1,182,586 288,603 280,155 (8,449) ‐3%

  Capitol & Front (Boulevard) 523,297 533,394 136,258 115,925 (20,333) ‐15%

  Capitol & Myrtle (Myrtle st.) 992,372 1,014,081 239,290 230,842 (8,449) ‐4%

  11th & Front (CCDC's portion 30.1%) 307,631 376,171 80,921 78,482 (2,439) ‐3%

  Misc. Parking 85,286 84,121 21,030 22,158 1,128 5%

 TOTAL PARKING 8,480,052 8,776,542 2,182,475 2,014,626 (167,849) ‐8%

Other  534,380 5,319,500 37,525 42,350 4,825 13%

 TOTAL 23,929,948 30,926,042 2,327,866 2,071,569 (256,297) ‐11%

RECONCILIATION TO FY2020 BUDGETED OPERATING REVENUES

Total Revenues Approved Budget $69,319,635

Ada County Courthouse Master/Surplus Ground Lease (passed‐through) (420,111)

Use of Fund Balance (22,793,939)

Bond Financing Proceeds (14,600,000)

Miscellaneous Revenue (Lease, Property Transactions) (579,543)

Operating Revenues $30,926,042

FY2020 OPERATING REVENUES through 1st Quarter

FY 2020

QUARTERLY REVENUE REPORT 

PROPERTY TAX REVENUE ALLOCATION DISTRICT (RAD) & PARKING SYSTEM SUMMARY

Q1 (October 2019 thru December 2019)



Capital City Development Corporation
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
December 31, 2019

General Fund
River Myrtle 

District RA Fund
Westside District 

RA Fund
30th Street District 

RA Fund
Shoreline District 

RA Fund

Gateway East 
District RA 

Fund Parking Fund Total
ASSETS

Cash and investments 1,330,000    21,328,736           4,838,351           1,230,856            90,346               (38,913)            9,882,890     38,662,266          
Accounts receivable 2,413           -                       71,543                -                       -                     -                  (11,871)        62,085                 
Interest receivable 35,153         -                       -                      -                       -                     -                  -               35,153                 
Taxes receivable -              10,423,352           3,872,302           767,593               111,505             677,131           -               15,851,883          
Due from other governmental units -              -                       -                      -                       -                     -                  -               -                       
Prepaids -              10,792                  -                      -                       -                     -                  -               10,792                 
Restricted cash -              926,665                -                      -                       -                     -                  2,260,137     3,186,802            
Restricted investments -               -                      -                       -                     -                  -               -                       
Interest in partnership -              -                       -                      -                       -                     -                  -               -                       
Property held for resale or development -              54,490                  7,129,390           -                       -                     -                  -               7,183,880            

TOTAL ASSETS 1,367,566    32,744,035           15,911,586         1,998,449            201,851             638,218           12,131,156   64,992,861          

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 71,600         191,247                11,740                46                        -                     1,239               516,319        792,191               
Accrued liabilities 125,048       -                       -                      -                       -                     -                  -               125,048               
Advanced revenues -              -                       -                      -                       -                     -                  -               -                       
Refundable deposits -              -                       11,526                -                       -                     -                  -               11,526                 

Total liabilities 196,648       191,247                23,266                46                        -                     1,239               516,319        928,765               

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
-              -               -                       

Unavailable property tax -              10,423,352           3,872,302           767,593               111,505             677,131           15,851,883          

Total deferred inflows of resources -              10,423,352           3,872,302           767,593               111,505             677,131           -               15,851,883          

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable -              65,282                  7,129,390           -                       -                     -                  -               7,194,672            
Restricted -              22,064,154           4,886,628           1,230,810            90,346               (40,152)            1,760,133     29,991,919          
Committed -              -                       -                      -                       -                     -                  500,000        500,000               
Assigned -              -                       -                      -                       -                     -                  9,354,704     9,354,704            
Unassigned 1,170,918    -                       -                      -               1,170,918            

Total fund balances 1,170,918    22,129,436           12,016,018         1,230,810            90,346               (40,152)            11,614,837   48,212,213          

TOTAL LIABILITIES DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 1,367,566    32,744,035           15,911,586         1,998,449            201,851             638,218           12,131,156   64,992,861          

FUND BALANCE DEFINITIONS
Nonspendable: cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form or are legally or contractually required to remain intact.  
Restricted: can be spent for only stipulated purposes as determined by law or external resource providers.
Committed: can be spent for only specific purposes as determined by formal CCDC Board action.
Assigned: intended for specific purposes but not committed or restricted.
Unassigned: all other funds ; typically the General Fund.



October 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020

Through SECOND QUARTER

FY2020 Year‐To‐Date Financial Report (Unaudited)



 
 
 
 
 

FY2020 Year‐to‐Date Financial Report (Unaudited) 
Through SECOND QUARTER 
October 1, 2019 – March 31, 2020 

REVENUES:  

The actual tax increment revenues for the first two quarters were $9.4 million or 56% of 
the  annual  budgeted  tax  increment  revenue  for  FY2020,  which  is  consistent  with 
expectation. 

Q1:  Some  of  the  Q1  variance  is  attributable  to  a  PARCS  (Parking  Access  and  Control 
System) failure affecting all Agency garages at the start of the holiday season.  

Q2: The COVID‐19 pandemic ‘arrived’ in Boise on March 13 when Governor Little issued 
the statewide Stay Healthy emergency order. Similar action by Mayor McLean and the 
Boise City Council came shortly thereafter. While the Agency’s ParkBOI system of public 
parking  garages  remained  open  as  essential  support  to  essential  businesses,  most 
downtown  businesses were  required  to  close.  Parking  garage  utilization  fell  to  5%  of 
normal as a  result. With  just  two weeks  remaining, parking  revenues  took a  relatively 
small hit in Q2. Substantial reductions are inevitable in Q3 and Q4.   

EXPENSES:  

As  of March  31,  2020,  Agency’s  operating  expenses  were  38%  of  the  annual  budget 
amount.  Capital outlay expenditures for the first two quarters were at 4% of the annual 
budget.   Most  of  the  expenses  for  capital  projects  hit  during  the  construction  season 
which corresponds with the Agency’s third and fourth quarters. Capital projects planning 
and design were underway in the first two quarters. 

 

 

 

ABOUT THIS REPORT.  This report includes all budgeted Agency funds. 
Revenues 

 Ada County distributes property tax revenue to local governments monthly as received; however, almost 
99% of the total budgeted amount is distributed twice a year in January (about 60%) and in July (about 40%) 
after property tax due dates (December and June). 

 Parking garage revenue is generated and received daily throughout the year. 

 Fund Balance: Transfer‐in if revenues exceed expenses, transfer‐out if expenses exceed revenues.  
Expenses 

 Debt service payments are made twice per year: interest only in March; principal & interest in September. 

 Capital projects are typically designed and planned during the first half of a fiscal year with construction and 
most expenses occurring in the second half.  

 Revenues received from sub‐lessee Civic Plaza are equal to the expenses distributed to Ada County for the 
Ada County Courthouse Master/Surplus Ground Lease. They are passed through only. 

 



FY2020 BUDGET SUMMARY through 2nd quarter March is month 6 of 12; FY2020 is 50% complete.

FY2020 FY2020 % Actual 

Total Q2 To

REVENUE SUMMARY (Original) Budget Actual Total Budget

Revenue from Operations

Revenue Allocation (Tax Increment)............................................................................................. 16,830,000             9,437,301               56%

Parking Revenue............................................................................................................................ 8,776,542               4,040,786               46%

Other Revenues (Various Reimbursements)................................................................................. 5,319,500               131,188                  2%

  Subtotal 30,926,042$          13,609,275$          44%

Other Sources

Misc. Revenues (Grants/Leases/Property Transactions)............................................................... 579,543                  522,413                  90%

Bond Financing............................................................................................................................... 14,600,000             ‐                           0%

Use of (Transfer to) Working Capital Fund.................................................................................... 22,793,939             (7,509,027)             ‐33%

  Subtotal 37,973,482$          (6,986,614)$           ‐18%
                         

Subtotal ‐ Revenue from Operations 68,899,524$          6,622,661$            10%

Pass‐Through Revenue

Ada County Courthouse Corridor Leases....................................................................................... 420,111                  51,556                     12%

  Subtotal 420,111$                51,556$                  12%
                         

TOTAL REVENUE 69,319,635$          6,674,217$            10%

FY2020 FY2020 % Actual 

Total Q2 To

EXPENSE SUMMARY (Original) Budget Actual Total Budget

Operating Expense

Personnel Costs............................................................................................................................. 2,472,000               1,078,531               44%

Services & Operations.................................................................................................................... 2,983,851               1,376,111               46%

Facilities Management................................................................................................................... 908,057                  427,995                  47%

Professional Services ..................................................................................................................... 2,155,000               328,141                  15%

  Subtotal 8,518,908$             3,210,779$             38%

Debt Service & Contractual Obligations

Debt Service................................................................................................................................... 4,329,316               386,994                  9%

Contractual Obligations (included in CIP)...................................................................................... 3,216,000               934,999                  29%

  Subtotal 7,545,316$             1,321,993$             18%

Capital Outlay

Office Furniture/Computer Equipment......................................................................................... 74,500                     117,541                  158%

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP)........................................................................................ 49,442,300             1,407,989               3%

Parking Reinvestment Plan (PRP).................................................................................................. 2,335,000               440,875                  19%

Mobility Projects............................................................................................................................ 983,500                  123,485                  13%

  Subtotal 52,835,300$          2,089,890$             4%

Subtotal ‐ Expenses for Operations 68,899,524$          6,622,661$            10%

Pass‐Through Expense

Ada County Courthouse Corridor Leases....................................................................................... 420,111                  51,556                     12%

  Subtotal 420,111$                51,556$                  12%                         

TOTAL EXPENSE 69,319,635$          6,674,217$            10%



FY 2019 FY 2020

Total Total YTD YTD YTD YTD

Activity Actual Budget Budget Actual Variance $ Variance %

 TIF BY DISTRICT

   River‐Myrtle / Old Boise 10,546,366 11,100,000 6,418,230 6,165,197 (253,033) ‐4%

   Westside 3,723,464 4,100,000 2,461,773 2,280,811 (180,962) ‐7%

   30th Street 645,687 800,000 465,355 456,027 (9,328) ‐2%

   Shoreline n/a 120,000 0 66,334 66,334 ‐‐‐

   Gateway East n/a 710,000 0 468,932 468,932 ‐‐‐

   TOTAL RAD 14,915,516 16,830,000 9,345,358 9,437,301 91,943 1%

 PARKING BY GARAGE

  9th & Main (Eastman) 1,509,721 1,535,469 776,448 900,882 124,434 16%

  Capitol & Main (Cap Terrace) 2,147,564 2,243,138 1,136,018 920,920 (215,098) ‐19%

  9th & Front (City Centre) 1,747,722 1,807,582 920,182 793,819 (126,363) ‐14%

  10th & Front (Grove st.) 1,166,458 1,182,586 596,252 552,258 (43,994) ‐7%

  Capitol & Front (Boulevard) 523,297 533,394 269,311 221,305 (48,006) ‐18%

  Capitol & Myrtle (Myrtle st.) 992,372 1,014,081 487,720 463,396 (24,324) ‐5%

  11th & Front (CCDC's portion 30.1%) 307,631 376,171 175,886 158,191 (17,695) ‐10%

  Misc. Parking 85,286 84,121 42,061 30,015 (12,046) ‐29%

 TOTAL PARKING 8,480,052 8,776,542 4,403,878 4,040,786 (363,092) ‐8%

Other  534,380 5,319,500 75,050 131,188 56,138 75%

 TOTAL 23,929,948 30,926,042 13,824,286 13,609,275 (215,010) ‐2%

RECONCILIATION TO FY2020 BUDGETED OPERATING REVENUES

Total Revenues Approved Budget $69,319,635

Ada County Courthouse Master/Surplus Ground Lease (passed‐through) (420,111)

Use of Fund Balance (22,793,939)

Bond Financing Proceeds (14,600,000)

Miscellaneous Revenue (Lease, Property Transactions) (579,543)

Operating Revenues $30,926,042

FY2020 OPERATING REVENUES through 2nd Quarter

FY 2020

QUARTERLY REVENUE REPORT 

PROPERTY TAX REVENUE ALLOCATION DISTRICT (RAD) & PARKING SYSTEM SUMMARY

Q1 (October 2019 thru March 2020)



Capital City Development Corporation
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
March 31, 2020

General Fund
River Myrtle 

District RA Fund
Westside District 

RA Fund
30th Street District 

RA Fund
Shoreline District 

RA Fund

Gateway East 
District RA 

Fund Parking Fund Total
ASSETS

Cash and investments 1,330,000    26,231,147           6,987,209           1,670,074            148,741             401,431           10,390,054   47,158,656          
Accounts receivable 2,156           -                       70,955                -                       -                     -                  48,683          121,794               
Interest receivable 28,557         -                       -                      -                       -                     -                  -               28,557                 
Taxes receivable -              4,272,005             1,591,989           315,211               45,171               208,202           -               6,432,578            
Due from other governmental units -              -                       -                      -                       -                     -                  -               -                       
Prepaids -              10,792                  -                      -                       -                     -                  -               10,792                 
Restricted cash -              1,462,329             -                      -                       -                     -                  2,461,968     3,924,297            
Restricted investments -               -                      -                       -                     -                  -               -                       
Interest in partnership -              -                       -                      -                       -                     -                  -               -                       
Property held for resale or development -              54,490                  7,129,390           -                       -                     -                  -               7,183,880            

TOTAL ASSETS 1,360,713    32,030,763           15,779,543         1,985,285            193,912             609,633           12,900,705   64,860,554          

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 102,798       647,655                93,414                -                       -                     2,487               466,223        1,312,577            
Accrued liabilities 105,313       -                       -                      -                       -                     -                  -               105,313               
Advanced revenues -              -                       -                      -                       -                     -                  -               -                       
Refundable deposits -              -                       11,526                -                       -                     -                  -               11,526                 

Total liabilities 208,111       647,655                104,940              -                       -                     2,487               466,223        1,429,416            

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
-              -               -                       

Unavailable property tax -              4,272,005             1,591,989           315,211               45,171               208,202           6,432,578            

Total deferred inflows of resources -              4,272,005             1,591,989           315,211               45,171               208,202           -               6,432,578            

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable -              65,282                  7,129,390           -                       -                     -                  -               7,194,672            
Restricted -              27,045,821           6,953,224           1,670,074            148,741             398,944           1,961,964     38,178,768          
Committed -              -                       -                      -                       -                     -                  500,000        500,000               
Assigned -              -                       -                      -                       -                     -                  9,972,518     9,972,518            
Unassigned 1,152,602    -                       -                      -               1,152,602            

Total fund balances 1,152,602    27,111,103           14,082,614         1,670,074            148,741             398,944           12,434,482   56,998,560          

TOTAL LIABILITIES DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 1,360,713    32,030,763           15,779,543         1,985,285            193,912             609,633           12,900,705   64,860,554          

f g
FUND BALANCE DEFINITIONS

Nonspendable: cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form or are legally or contractually required to remain intact.  
Restricted: can be spent for only stipulated purposes as determined by law or external resource providers.
Committed: can be spent for only specific purposes as determined by formal CCDC Board action.
Assigned: intended for specific purposes but not committed or restricted.
Unassigned: all other funds ; typically the General Fund.



 

 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 

9100 S. Eisenman Road Mixed Use Office / Industrial - Type 2 
Participation Agreement Approval with R.L.R. Investments, LLC. 

Date: 
06/08/2020 

Staff Contact: 
Brady Shinn 

Attachments: 
1) Resolution #1658 
2) Type 2 Agreement 

Action Requested: 
Adopt Resolution #1658 approving the Type 2 General Assistance Participation 
Agreement with R.L.R. Investments, LLC and authorizing the Executive Director to 
execute the agreement. 

 

Background: 

9100 S. Eisenman is a mixed-use office and industrial project being developed by R.L.R. 

Investments, LLC in the Gateway East District. R.L.R. Investments, LLC is the lead 

company for the Roberts Family of Companies, located in Wilmington, Ohio. The Roberts 

Family of Companies is a domestic and international freight transportation and logistics 

provider. The project consists of two buildings and a refueling canopy. The project will 

serve as a freight transportation hub, where freight trucks will transfer and store shipping 

cargo at the terminal and refuel at the canopy as necessary. The office will serve as the 

logistics center for the freight activities. The office and terminal are housed in a 65,000 

SF building (60,000 SF dedicated to the terminal, and 5,000 SF dedicated to the office) 

and a detached 9,000 SF maintenance building, with three interior bays. The project also 

includes revitalizing the existing fuel station canopy. In total, the site is 13.27 acres. The 

site is located on the east side of Eisenman Road across from the Winco Distribution 

Campus. Total development costs are estimated to be nearly $9.8 million. 

9100 S. Eisenman received Design Review approval in May, 2019 and the building permit 

application will be submitted shortly once the Applicant completes their construction 

bidding. The developer has begun excavation and side grading under an issued limited 

permit, which started in November 2019. Vertical construction is estimated for a July 2020 

start, pending permit issuance. The developer expects project completion and certificate 

of occupancy in May 2021. 



 

Page 2 

9100 S. Eisenman has requested designation for CCDC’s Type 2 Participation Program. 

Under the Gateway East Participation Program, which does not require a scorecard and 

projects are eligible for reimbursement at 80% of tax increment generated for up to six 

years, subject to Board approval. The public improvements that are eligible for CCDC 

funding include sidewalks, half-street construction of Freight Street (including a cul-de-

sac to help freight traffic turnaround) and utility line extensions for water and sewer mains. 

In July 2019, the CCDC Board approved the Gateway East Participation Program which 

includes a Type 2 General Assistance Reimbursement. This project meets the 

requirements of the Type 2 Program and also promotes CCDC and City objectives to 

diversify Boise’s economy by promoting industrial development. To the knowledge of 

Agency staff, the project owner has not applied for any incentive programs that are 

incompatible with Type 2 tax increment reimbursement assistance. 

Project Summary and Timeline: 

• Located on Eisenman Road and Freight Street across from the Winco Distribution 
Center 

• 13.47 acre lot 

• 5,000 SF office  

• 9,000 SF maintenance shop (3 bays) 

• 60,000 SF freight terminal and loading dock (60 bays) 

• Renovate the existing fuel canopy 

• At least 70 surface parking stalls 

• $9,775,000 Total Development Costs 

• $385,820 Estimated Eligible Expenses  

• 150 construction jobs estimated  

• 50+ permanent jobs estimated, approximately $58,000 median salary  

• March 4, 2019 – Conditional Use Permit Approval 

• May 9, 2019 – Design Review Approval  

• November 2019 – Construction began on excavation, grading. 

• Spring 2020 – Type 2 Agreement Finalize/Execute 

• Spring 2021 – Estimated Construction completion 

• Summer 2021 – Developer submits costs for reimbursement 

• 2022 – Project is on tax rolls and pays property taxes 

• 2023 through 2027 – T2 reimbursement based on actual expenses and taxes paid 
 
Fiscal Notes: 
Final estimates show that the project has Eligible Expenses of approximately $385,820. 

Based on CCDC’s tax increment generation equation, CCDC estimates that the project 



 

Page 3 

will generate approximately $80,000. The reimbursement for Eligible Expenses will be 

80% this number annually, approximately $64,000. The project will generate enough tax 

increment to reimburse for Eligible Expenses in six years. The total reimbursement will 

not exceed the actual public improvement expenses as verified by CCDC at completion 

of the project.  

Upon approval of an Agreement, staff will include the project in the next Five-Year Capital 

Improvements Plan amendment for the Gateway East District. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Adopt Resolution #1658 

 

Suggested Motion: 
I move to adopt Resolution #1658 approving the Type 2 General Assistance Participation 
Agreement with R.L.R. Investments, LLC and authorizing the Executive Director to 
execute the agreement. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 1658  - 1  

RESOLUTION NO.  1658 
 
 
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, 
IDAHO:   
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN 
RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, APPROVING THE TYPE 2 
GENERAL ASSISTANCE PARTICIPATION PROGRAM AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND R.L.R. INVESTMENTS, LLC, FOR XXXXXXXXX; 
AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE THE 
AGREEMENT AND ANY NECESSARY DOCUMENTS OR AGREEMENTS, 
SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONTINGENCIES; AUTHORIZING ANY TECHNICAL 
CORRECTIONS TO THE AGREEMENTS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.   

 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized under 
the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho 
Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, Chapter 29, 
Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively, the “Act”), as a duly created and functioning urban renewal 
agency for Boise City, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as the “Agency”). 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Boise City, Idaho (the “City”), after notice duly 
published, conducted a public hearing on the Urban Renewal Plan for the Gateway East 
Economic Development District Project Area (the “Gateway East District Plan”), and following 
said public hearing the City adopted its Ordinance No. 58-18 on December 18, 2018, approving 
the Gateway East District Plan and making certain findings; and, 

  
WHEREAS, R.L.R. Investments, LLC, owns or controls certain real property that it plans 

to develop into a trucking facility, maintenance building, office, and fuel station (the “Project”), 
including certain right-of-way public improvements, all of which are located in the Gateway East 
Economic Development District as created by the Gateway East District Plan; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency has in place a Participation Program which includes the Type 2 

General Assistance Program under which the Agency provides reimbursement for public 
improvements associated with private development projects; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency has determined that it is in the public interest to enter into a 
Type 2 Participation Program Agreement with R.L.R. Investments, LLC, whereby R.L.R. 
Investments, LLC, will construct the Project and the Agency will reimburse for constructing public 
improvements as specified in the Agreement; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein as if set forth in full is 
the Type 2 Participation Program Agreement with R.L.R. Investments, LLC; and,   
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency Board finds it in the best public interest to approve the Agreement 
and to authorize the Executive Director to execute same. 
 
 

bshinn
Text Box
Attachment #1 - Resolution #1658



RESOLUTION NO. 1658  - 2  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AS 
FOLLOWS:   
 
 Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct. 
 
 Section 2: That the Type 2 Participation Program Agreement, a copy of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference, is hereby approved. 
 
 Section 3: That the Executive Director of the Agency is hereby authorized to sign and 
enter into the Agreement and to execute all necessary documents required to implement the 
actions contemplated by the Agreement, subject to representations by the Agency staff and the 
Agency legal counsel that all conditions precedent to such actions have been met; and further, 
any necessary technical changes to the Agreement or other documents are acceptable, upon 
advice from the Agency’s legal counsel that said changes are consistent with the provisions of 
the Agreement and the comments and discussions received at the June 8, 2020, Agency Board 
meeting; the Agency is further authorized to appropriate any and all funds contemplated by the 
Agreement and to perform any and all other duties required pursuant to said Agreement. 
 
 Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval.   
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on June 8, 
2020.  Signed by the Chair of the Agency Board of Commissioners and attested by the Secretary 
to the Agency Board of Commissioners on June 8, 2020.   
       
 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY 
 
 
 
      By:         
            Dana Zuckerman, Chair 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:        
      Lauren McLean, Secretary 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
TYPE 2 GENERAL ASSISTANCE PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 

 
BY AND BETWEEN 

 
CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

 
AND 

 
R.L.R. Investments, L.L.C. 

 
 

TYPE 2 GENERAL ASSISTANCE PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 
 

 
THIS TYPE 2 GENERAL ASSISTANCE PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) 

is entered into by and between the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Boise, also known as 
CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (“CCDC”), an independent public body, 
corporate and politic, organized and existing under the laws of the State of Idaho, and R.L.R. 
Investments, L.L.C. (“Participant”), collectively referred to as the “Parties” and each individually 
as “Party.” 

 
RECITALS 

  
A. CCDC is an urban renewal agency created by and existing pursuant to the Idaho 

Urban Renewal Law of 1965, being Idaho Code, Title 50, Chapter 20, and the 
Local Economic Project Act, being Idaho Code, Title 50, Chapter 29, as amended 
and supplemented (collectively the "Act").   

 
B. Participant owns or controls certain real property addressed as 9100 S. Eisenman 

Rd. Boise, ID 83716 (the “Project Site”), which is more accurately described and 
depicted on attached Exhibit A.  

 
C. Participant plans to construct on the Project Site a trucking facility of approximately 

60,000 square feet with a 9,000 square foot maintenance building, 5,000 square 
foot office and fuel station (Boise terminal) (collectively, the “Project”).  The Project 
is visually depicted on attached Exhibit B.   

 
D. The CCDC Board of Commissioners has adopted the CCDC Participation Program 

Policy wherein CCDC can assist private and public development projects by 
funding improvements that benefit the public and are located in the public rights-
of-way or a permanent public easement area (the “Eligible Expenses”).  

 
E. As part of the Project, Participant intends to: construct streetscapes of Freight 

Street and South Eisenman Road and install utilities for the site/underground utility 



 

 

lines; pave the alley; perform necessary patch work and temporary turn-around on 
Freight Street. (the “Eligible Expenses”). The Eligible Expenses are visually 
depicted on the Public Improvement Plans on attached Exhibit C.   

 
F. The Project is located in the Gateway East Urban Renewal District (“RM District”) 

as defined by Gateway East Plan (the “Plan”). The Project will contribute to 
enhancing and revitalizing the RM District.   

G. After deeming it appropriate and in the best interest of the public to assist the 
development of the Project to achieve the objectives set forth in the Plan, CCDC 
has negotiated the terms and conditions of participation in the Project as governed 
by the Participation Program and the Act. 

H. Subject to the terms and conditions as set forth in this Agreement, CCDC agrees 
to reimburse Participant for the construction of Eligible Expenses, the cost 
estimates for which are attached on Exhibit D. 

 

AGREEMENT 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, the mutual covenants 
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows:  
 
I. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM 
 

The “Effective Date” of this Agreement shall be the date when this Agreement has been 
signed by the Parties (last date signed).  This Agreement shall commence on the Effective 
Date and shall continue until all obligations of each Party are complete or until the 
termination of the RM District on September 30, 2025, whichever comes first.  Participant 
must reach Completion of the Project and the Public Improvements by January 1, 2022. 
If Completion has not been reached by that date, CCDC may, in its sole discretion, deem 
Participant to be in default and, subject to Section V below, terminate this Agreement 
without penalty.  A single one hundred eighty (180) day extension to the January 1, 2022, 
construction completion deadline may be granted upon written approval by CCDC.  
 
“Completion” shall mean that Participant has received a final Certificate of Occupancy 
from the City of Boise. 
 

II. SUBJECT OF AGREEMENT 
 
 A. Recitals, Purpose of This Agreement 
 
 The Parties agree that the foregoing recitals are not mere recitations but are covenants of 

the Parties, binding upon them and forming a portion of the consideration for the 
agreements contained herein.  CCDC’s commitment herein is designed to comply with 
CCDC’s authority under the Act and the Plan and is intended to constitute an expenditure 
of CCDC funds for a public purpose and not be deemed a gift or donation of public funds.   

 



 

 

 B. Parties to This Agreement 
 
  1. CCDC 
  

 CCDC is an independent public body, corporate and politic, exercising 
governmental functions and powers and organized and existing under the Act.  The 
office of CCDC is located at 121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501, Boise, Idaho 83702.  
“CCDC,” as used herein, includes the Capital City Development Corporation and 
its successors and assigns. 

 
  2. Participant 
 

Participant is R.L.R. Investments, L.L.C. (“RLR”). The principal address of 
Participant is 600 Gillam Road, Wilmington, OH 45177. “Participant,” as used 
herein, includes RLR and any permitted nominee, assignee, or successor in 
interest as herein provided.  Participant qualifies as an “owner participant” or 
“participant” as those terms are used in the Plan. 
 

C. The Project 
  

The term “Project” as used herein shall mean the project constructed by Participant upon 
the Site, as depicted in Exhibit B.   
 
The current total assessed value of the Site, as determined by the Ada County Assessor, 
is One Million One Hundred Fifty-Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Dollars ($1,158,700) 
for tax year 2020. 
 
For purposes of this Agreement, Participant estimates the total value of the Project upon 
completion will be Nine Million Seven Hundred Thousand Seventy-Five Dollars 
($9,775,000) (the “Estimated Value”). 
 
The Project and any construction of additional structures upon any portion of the Site shall 
comply with all the provisions of the Plan and all applicable building and zoning 
ordinances. 
 
D. Participation Program 
 
Participant is eligible to receive 80% of the tax increment the project generates as 
reimbursement for Eligible Expenses over a period up to six (6) years until the Actual 
Eligible Expenses have been repaid, limited to the not to exceed amount indicated in 
Section III E. 
 

 
If Participant materially changes the Project contemplated in the application submitted to 
CCDC on February 13th, 2020 (the “Application”), CCDC reserves the right to re-evaluate 
the Project which could impact the reimbursement. Depending on the changes made by 
Participant to the Project, CCDC may find the Project is no longer eligible for assistance 
under the Participation Program. 

 



 

 

III. IMPROVEMENT OF THE SITE AND CCDC’S PARTICIPATION 
 
 A. Cost of Construction 
 
 The cost of the Project and the Public Improvements, defined below, shall be borne by 

Participant, except as otherwise set forth herein. 
 
 B. CCDC, City, and Other Governmental Entity Permits 
 
 Participant shall, at Participant’s own expense, secure any and all permits and approvals 

for the Project (including the Public Improvements) which may be required by CCDC, City, 
or any other governmental entity (“Approving Entities”) relative to Project construction and 
operation.  The Public Improvements shall be designed, constructed, and installed in 
compliance with the requirements of all the Approving Entities. 

 
 Participant shall keep CCDC advised of the approval process for all permits and approvals 

and advise CCDC immediately if any action or inaction by the Approving Entities will affect 
the scope and purpose of this Agreement. 

 
Any failure by Participant to secure required permits and approvals, including but not 
limited to compliance with any and all applicable City ordinances, not cured within 
applicable cure periods shall constitute a default under this Agreement, with CCDC 
reserving any of its rights and remedies under this Agreement concerning default. 

  
C. Public Improvements 

 
 “Public Improvements” shall mean those improvements eligible and agreed to for funding 

by CCDC.  The Public Improvements are set forth in Exhibit C. 
 

The Public Improvements are directly related to public facilities and are: (a) critical to the 
redevelopment of the Site; (b) are in the best interest of the public; (c) provide for 
enhanced development of the Site; and (d) provide a higher quality of development that 
should assist CCDC in achieving redevelopment of other properties adjacent to the Site 
and meeting the objectives of the Plan.   

 
D. Construction of Public Improvements 
 
Participant will construct the public improvements as shown in Exhibit C and as approved 
by the City of Boise, ACHD, and other authorities having jurisdiction. Upon CCDC’s 
request, CCDC shall have the right and the opportunity to review Participant’s construction 
plans, budgets, and bids for the Public Improvements (collectively the “Public 
Improvement Construction Documents”).  Participant will utilize commercially reasonable 
contracting, budgeting, and bidding practices to ensure that the Public Improvements are 
constructed consistent with the Public Improvement Construction Documents and are 
undertaken in a reasonable manner.  Participant shall be presumed to have utilized 
commercially reasonable contracting, budgeting, and bidding practices if its general 
contractor solicits or solicited at least three (3) competitive bids for the Public 
Improvements and such work is not performed by an affiliate or subsidiary of Participant.  
Upon request, Participant shall provide CCDC copies of any bids received. 
 



 

 

Participant warrants that the materials and workmanship employed in the construction of 
the Public Improvements shall be good and sound and shall conform to generally accepted 
standards within the construction industry in Boise, Idaho.   

  
E. Estimated Eligible Expenses 

 
Participant has estimated the cost of the Public Improvements to be Three Hundred 
Eighty-Five Thousand Eight Hundred Twenty Dollars (the “Estimated Eligible Expenses”).  
Attached hereto as Exhibit D is a schedule of Estimated Eligible Expenses. This Estimate 
of Eligible Expenses shall serve as the Not-to-Exceed amount for CCDC’s reimbursement 
obligation. 

 
F. Determining Actual Costs / Eligible Expenses / Reimbursement Amount 
 
Upon Completion of the construction of the Public Improvements on the Site and City’s 
acceptance of such improvements (as applicable), Participant will dedicate all constructed 
public infrastructure and utility infrastructure to City.   
 
Participant shall provide appropriate documentation (“Cost Documentation”) to CCDC that 
Participant has expended funds for Eligible Expenses in order to receive payment under 
the terms of this Agreement. Any Cost Documentation shall be submitted within thirty (30) 
days of Participant’s notification to CCDC that construction of the Project is complete and 
shall include: 
 

1. Evidence of Completion such as a certificate of occupancy for the Project 
or other notice from City acknowledging the construction of the Project and 
Public Improvements are complete.  

 
2. Recorded easements with appropriate governing body for public 

improvements constructed outside of the right of way. Areas requiring 
easements are set forth in Exhibit F (NOT APPLICABLE).  A draft 
easement is attached as Exhibit G (NOT APPLICABLE). 

 
3.  Schedule of values that includes line items for the Public Improvements 

approved by CCDC for reimbursement so they are identifiable and 
separate from other line items (“Schedule of Values”). 

 
4. Invoices from Participant’s general contractor, subcontractor(s), and 

material suppliers for each type of Eligible Expense item (e.g. concrete, 
pavers, benches, historic street lights).  Invoices shall specify quantities 
and unit costs of installed materials and a percentage estimate of how 
much installed material was used for the Public Improvements relative to 
the amount used for the Project. 

 
5. Explanation of any significant deviation between the initial cost estimates 

in Exhibit C and the actual costs in the Cost Documentation as requested 
by CCDC. 

 
6. A signed and notarized letter from Participant attesting that all materials 

used for the construction of the Public Improvements have been paid for, 
that contractors and subcontractors have been paid, that no liens exist on 



 

 

the work performed, and that the Cost Documentation is complete 
whereupon payment by CCDC shall constitute full accord and satisfaction 
of all the Agreement obligations. 

 
7. Additional documentation or clarifications may be required and requested 

by CCDC.  
 
8.  The Participant attests that all requested reimbursement expenses are for 

eligible public improvements within the public right-of-way or easement 
area. 

 
CCDC shall have thirty (30) days to review the   Cost Documentation supplied by 
Participant and confirm Participant’s performance of its obligations under this Agreement.  
During this 30-day period, CCDC shall review the Cost Documentation in order to:  (1) 
verify the costs were incurred in constructing the Public Improvements; (2) verify the costs 
incurred are commercially reasonable; and (3) verify Participant has paid all contractors, 
subcontractors, and material suppliers that constructed or provided materials for the Public 
Improvements. 

 
If CCDC disputes any portion of the Cost Documentation, CCDC shall reimburse 
Participant for the undisputed amount in the manner set forth below and the Parties shall 
amicably and in good faith work together to resolve any dispute over the Cost 
Documentation. Disputes shall be resolved pursuant to the procedures set forth in Section 
V.  
 
Following CCDC’s verification of the Cost Documentation and determination of the actual 
costs to construct the Public Improvements (the “Actual Costs”), CCDC shall notify 
Participant of the amount CCDC will reimburse Participant for the Public Improvements 
(the “CCDC Reimbursement”).  The CCDC Reimbursement shall be the lesser of the 
Actual Costs or the Estimated Eligible Expenses.   
 
G. Reimbursement Schedule 

 
Upon determining the CCDC Reimbursement, CCDC shall finalize and execute the 
“Confirmation of Final Reimbursement Amount and Payment Schedule.”  A draft of 
Payment Schedule is attached hereto as Exhibit F.  
 
The CCDC Reimbursement is paid using actual tax increment revenue generated by the 
Project and received by CCDC. The Reimbursement shall be paid upon completion of the 
Project.  The reimbursement term will be impacted by Project’s completion date.  
 
CCDC has no authority or control of the Ada County Assessor’s property tax assessments. 
In general, though exceptions exist for periodic adjustments to the property tax rolls, the 
value of new construction activity occurring during a given calendar year that is completed 
by December 31 of that year will be added to the property tax rolls as of January 1 of the 
subsequent year. Tax assessments on that value will be paid by Participant and collected 

during the following fiscal year for Ada County.1  This circumstance reflects a full-year 

                                                             
1

 CCDC and Ada County both operate on a fiscal year beginning on October 1 and ending September 30. 



 

 

value on the Primary Roll. Property tax payments are due in December and June for the 
Primary Roll. 
 
The anticipated timeline for this project is as follows: 
 

Reimbursement Project 
Completion 

Assessment 
Type 

Assessment Taxes Due Reimbursement 
Paid 

#1 July 2021 Primary Roll November 
2021 

Jan. 2022 & 
June 2022 

September 
2023 

#2 NA Primary Roll January 
2022 

Dec. 2022 & 
June 2023 

September 
2024 

#3 NA Primary Roll January 
2023 

Dec. 2023 & 
June 2024 

September 
2025 

#4 NA Primary Roll January 
2024 

Dec. 2024 & 
June 2025 

September 
2026 

#5 NA Primary Roll January 
2025 

Dec. 2024 & 
June 2025 

September 
2027 

#6 NA Primary Roll January 
2026 

Dec. 2024 & 
June 2025 

September 
2027 

 
 

The annual reimbursement payment will be determined by the actual tax increment the 
Project generates. For illustration purposes only, the Annual Payment Schedule is 
estimated below. This is an estimate and is in no way guaranteed.  
 

Estimated Assessed Full Value* $8,616,000 

2020 Assessed Value ($1,158,700) 

Subtotal $6,892,800 

X Levy Rate (0.0116) $79,956 

X 80% District Reimbursement Rate $63,965 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Estimated Reimbursement Payments   

1) September 2023  $63,965 

2) September 2024 $63,965 

3) September 2025 $63,965 

4) September 2026 $63,965 

5) September 2026 $63,965 

6) September 2026 $63,965 

Total   $383,791 



 

 

 
 
* The Estimated Assessed Value is slightly lower than the “Estimate Value” in Section II. C. to 

account for potential differences in the assessment.  

** 2022 Reimbursement Estimate is based off of a partial value for the occupancy year in 2021, 

and is 50% of the estimated full value. 

 
Participant anticipates that redevelopment of the Site shall result in sufficient increases to 
its assessed value to allow CCDC to reimburse Participant during the Reimbursement 
Period.  If the CCDC Reimbursement is not fully reimbursed by the six annual 
payments as further limited by the Termination Date of the Plan, CCDC will not be 
obligated to make any additional payments.  

 
It is the specific intent of the Parties that the CCDC Reimbursement shall be paid from the 
tax increment monies, if any, which are paid to CCDC as a direct result of the Project 
constructed on the Site.  CCDC’s payment obligations hereunder shall not constitute a 
general obligation or debt of CCDC, the State of Idaho, or any of its political subdivisions 
or give rise to a charge against their general credit or taxing powers to be payable out of 
any funds or properties other than the 80% of the tax increment generated by the Project 
during the Reimbursement Period.  
 
Notwithstanding the above, CCDC reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to pay off the 
CCDC Reimbursement at any time. 
 

 H. CCDC Reimbursement Assignable 
 

CCDC shall reimburse Participant by paying the CCDC Reimbursement to Participant or 
to Participant’s assignee or designee.  Participant shall have the right to assign its right to 
reimbursement to its lender, its successor, or other entity designated by Participant.  
CCDC and Participant agree that CCDC’s obligations run only to Participant or its 
assignee or designee. 
 
I. Subordination of Reimbursement Obligations   

 
The Parties agree this Agreement does not provide Participant with a security interest in 
any CCDC revenues for the District or any other urban renewal plan area, including but 
not limited to revenue from any “Revenue Allocation Area” (as defined in Title 50, Chapter 
29 of the Idaho Code) or any revenue from CCDC’s parking garages.  Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the obligation of CCDC to make the payments 
as specified in this Agreement shall be subordinate to all CCDC obligations that have 
committed or in the future commit available CCDC revenues, including but not limited to 
revenue from any Revenue Allocation Area or any revenue from CCDC’s parking garages, 
and may be subject to consent and approval by CCDC lenders. 

 
 J. Indemnification 
 
 Participant shall indemnify and hold CCDC and its officers, agents, and employees 

harmless from and against all liabilities, obligations, damages, penalties, claims, costs, 
charges, and expenses, including reasonable architect and attorney fees (collectively 
referred to in this Section as “Claim”), which may be imposed upon or incurred by or 
asserted against CCDC or its officers, agents, and employees  relating to the construction 



 

 

or design of the Public Improvements or otherwise arising out of Participant’s negligent or 
tortious actions or inactions. 

 
In the event an action or proceeding is brought against CCDC or its respective officers, 
agents, and employees by reason of any such Claim, Participant, upon written notice from 
CCDC shall, at Participant’s expense, resist or defend such action or 
proceeding.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Participant shall have no obligation to 
indemnify, defend, or hold CCDC and its respective officers, agents, and employees 
harmless from and against any matter to the extent it arises from the active negligence or 
willful act of CCDC or its respective officers, agents, or employees.  

 
The indemnification provisions set forth herein are intended to, and shall, survive the 
termination or completion of this Agreement. 

 
 K. Insurance 
 

Participant shall, or shall through its contractor, agents, representatives, employees, or 
subcontractors, at no cost to CCDC, obtain and maintain in force for the duration of the 
construction of the Public Improvements and the Project insurance of the following types, 
with limits not less than those set forth below and in a form acceptable to CCDC, against 
claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from, or in 
connection with, the performance of the services hereunder by Participant, its agents, 
representatives, employees, or subcontractors:   

 
 1. Commercial General Liability Insurance (“Occurrence Form”) with a 

minimum combined single limit liability of $1,000,000 each occurrence for bodily 
injury and property damage; with a minimum limit of liability of $1,000,000 each 
person for personal and advertising injury liability.  Such policy shall have a general 
aggregate limit of not less than $2,000,000, which general aggregate limit will be 
provided on a per project basis.  The policy shall be endorsed to name CCDC as 
additional insured.   

 
 2. Workers’ Compensation Insurance, including occupational illness or 

disease coverage, in accordance with the laws of the nation, state, territory, or 
province having jurisdiction over Participant’s employees, and Employer’s Liability 
Insurance.  Participant shall not utilize occupational accident or health insurance 
policies, or the equivalent, in lieu of mandatory Workers’ Compensation Insurance 
or otherwise attempt to opt out of the statutory Workers’ Compensation system.   

 
3. Automobile Liability Insurance covering use of all owned, non-owned, and 
hired automobiles with a minimum combined single limit of liability for bodily injury 
and property damage of $1,000,000 per occurrence.  This policy shall be endorsed 
to name CCDC, including its respective affiliates, directors, and employees, as 
additional insureds.   

 
 4. Certificates of insurance satisfactory in form to CCDC (ACORD form or 

equivalent) shall be supplied to CCDC evidencing that the insurance required 
above is in force, that, to the extent commercially reasonable, not less than thirty 
(30) days’ written notice will be given to CCDC prior to any cancellation or 
restrictive modification of the policies, and that the waivers of subrogation are in 
force.  Participant shall also provide, with its certificate of insurance, executed 



 

 

copies of the additional insured endorsements and dedicated limits endorsements 
required in this Agreement.  At CCDC’s request, Participant shall provide a certified 
copy of each insurance policy required under this Agreement.   

 
 L. Antidiscrimination During Construction 
 
 Participant, for itself and its successors and assigns, agrees that in the construction of 

improvements on the Site provided for in this Agreement, Participant at its agents will not 
discriminate against any person on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity/expression, national origin or ancestry, age, or handicap.  
Violation of this section shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and be 
deemed grounds for cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Agreement by CCDC, 
in whole or in part. 

 
M. Maintenance 

 
 Participant recognizes CCDC has no specific authority to accept maintenance 

responsibility of the Public Improvements and that no agreement has been reached with 
CCDC, City, or other governmental entity to accept any maintenance obligations for the 
Public Improvements in the right of way or an easement area. Participant is required to 
assume maintenance and operations responsibility for the public improvements in the 
easement areas shown in Exhibit G. Public improvements maintained by the property 
owner must be maintained at an equivalent standard as those improvements in the right-
of-way. CCDC or City may enforce maintenance standards as needed. 

 
IV. USE OF THE SITE, COMPLIANCE WITH LAW, PAYMENT OF TAXES 
 
 A. Use of the Site 
 
 Participant agrees and covenants to comply with all other provisions and conditions of the 

Plan for the period of time the Plan is in force and effect, which for purposes of this 
Agreement is deemed effective through December 31, 2025. 

 
 B. Local, State and Federal Laws 
 
 Participant covenants that it carried out the construction of the improvements in conformity 

with all applicable laws, including all applicable federal and state labor standards. 
 
 C. Taxes 
 

Participant recognizes CCDC has no authority or involvement in the assessment, tax, or 
collection process for ad valorem taxes, including real property and personal property 
taxes.  Participant also recognizes the ability of CCDC to reimburse Participant for the 
CCDC Reimbursement is dependent on the ad valorem assessment and timing of 
collection process as is the CCDC’s ability to successfully meet long term financing and 
payment obligations and to continue doing business. 

 
  1. Taxes Generally 
 

 Participant shall pay when due all real estate and personal property taxes and 
assessments assessed and levied on Participant’s ownership interest of the Site.  



 

 

This provision or covenant shall run with the land and be binding upon Participant’s 
successors.   

 
2.  Tax Appeals/ Exemptions 
 
Participant shall not appeal any assessed value or request for property tax 
exemption for any of the parcels within the site for an assessment of less than the 
Estimated Value, as described in Section 2.c. Any appeal of the assessed value 
or request for any property tax exemption for any of the parcels within the site for 
an assessment in excess of the Estimated Value, shall require CCDC’s written 
authorization.  The foregoing shall include but is not limited to an exemption or 
reduction under Idaho Code § 63-602NN or Idaho Code Section 63-606A, for 
property taxes assessed for any property tax year up to and including property tax 
year 2025. The property tax year runs from January 1st to December 31st. 

 
  3. Delinquent or Reduced Taxes 
 

Participant expressly acknowledges and understands that the CCDC 
Reimbursement is linked to the tax increment revenue actually generated from the 
Site, and in the event insufficient taxes are received by CCDC for any reason, 
including a reduction of the tax levy rate or assessed values less than assumed by 
CCDC and Participant or in the event of any tax delinquency o by any owner of 
parcels within the Site or by any tenant related to personal property, the actual tax 
increment received by CCDC will be reduced, which in turn will result in lower 
Annual Payments by CCDC to Participant.  
  

V. DEFAULTS, REMEDIES, AND TERMINATION 
 
 A. Defaults in General 
 
 In the event that a dispute arises between CCDC and Participant regarding application or 

interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the aggrieved Party shall promptly notify 
the other Party to this Agreement of the dispute within ten (10) days after such dispute 
arises.  If the Parties shall have failed to resolve the dispute within forty-five (45) days after 
delivery of such notice, the Parties may first endeavor to settle the dispute in an amicable 
manner by mediation.  If the Parties elect to mediate their dispute, the Parties will select 
a mediator by mutual agreement and agree to each pay half of the mediator’s costs and 
fees.  The mediation will take place in Boise, Idaho, unless otherwise agreed by the Parties 
in writing.  Should the Parties be unable to resolve the dispute to their mutual satisfaction 
within forty-five (45) days after such completion of mediation, each Party shall have the 
right to pursue any rights or remedies it may have at law or in equity.  If the Parties do not 
mutually agree to mediate the dispute, either Party may pursue any rights or remedies it 
may have at law.   

 
 B. Legal Actions 
 
 In addition to any other rights or remedies, any Party may institute legal action to cure, 

correct, or remedy any default; to recover damages for any default; or to obtain any other 
remedy consistent with the purpose of this Agreement.  The nondefaulting Party may also, 
at its option, cure the default and sue to collect reasonable attorney’s fees and costs 
incurred by virtue of curing or correcting the Party’s breach.   



 

 

 
The laws of the State of Idaho shall govern the interpretation and enforcement of this 
Agreement. 

   
 C. Rights and Remedies Are Cumulative 
 
 Except as otherwise expressly stated in this Agreement, the rights and remedies of the 

Parties are cumulative, and the exercise by any Party of one or more of such rights or 
remedies shall not preclude the exercise by it, at the same time or different times, of any 
other rights or remedies for the same default or any other default by the other Party.   

 
 CCDC reserves the right to withhold reimbursement to Participant for any Participant 

default. 
 
VI. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
 A. Notices, Demands, and Communications Between the Parties 
 
 Formal notices, demands, and communications between CCDC and Participant shall be 

sufficiently given if dispatched by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return 
receipt requested, to the principal offices of CCDC and Participant as set forth in this 
Agreement.  Such written notices, demands, and communications may be sent in the 
same manner to such other addresses as either party may from time to time designate by 
mail. 

 
 B. Conflicts of Interest 
 
 No member, official, or employee of CCDC shall have any personal interest, direct or 

indirect, in this Agreement, nor shall any such member, official, or employee participate in 
any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his/her personal interests or the 
interests of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he/she is directly or 
indirectly interested. 

  
 Participant warrants that it has not paid or given, and will not pay or give, any third party 

any money or other consideration for obtaining this Agreement. 
 
 C. Non-Liability of CCDC Officials and Employees 
 
 No member, official, or employee of CCDC shall be personally liable to Participant in the 

event of any default or breach by CCDC or for any amount which may become due to 
Participant or on any obligations under the terms of this Agreement. 

 
 D. Successors and Assigns 
 
 This Agreement shall, except as otherwise provided herein, be binding upon and inure to 

the benefit of the successors and assigns of the Parties hereto. 
 
 E. Attorney Fees and Costs 
 
 In the event that either Party to this Agreement shall enforce any of the provisions hereof 

in any action at law or in equity, the unsuccessful Party to such litigation agrees to pay to 



 

 

the prevailing Party all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney fees incurred 
therein by the prevailing Party, and such may be included to the judgment entered in such 
action. 

 
 F. Severability 
 
 If any provisions of this Agreement shall for any reason be held to be illegal or invalid, 

such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provisions of this Agreement, and this 
Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid provisions had not 
been contained herein. 

 
 G. Headings 
 
 The section headings contained herein are for convenience and reference and are not 

intended to define or limit the scope of any provision of this Agreement. 
 
 H. Counterparts 
 
 This Agreement may be simultaneously executed in several counterparts, each of which 

shall be an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
 I. Forced Delay; Extension of Times of Performance 
 
 In addition to the specific provisions of this Agreement, performance by any Party 

hereunder shall not be deemed to be in default where delays or defaults are due to war; 
insurrection; strikes; lock-outs; riots; floods; earthquakes; fires; casualties; acts of God; 
acts of the public enemy; epidemics; quarantine restrictions; freight embargoes; lack of 
transportation; lack of materials or labor at commercially reasonable prices or in 
commercially reasonable quantities; governmental restrictions or priority; litigation; 
unusually severe weather; acts of another party; environmental analysis, or removal of 
hazardous or toxic substances; acts or the failure to act of any public or governmental 
agency or entity (except that acts or the failure to act by CCDC shall not excuse 
performance by CCDC); or any other causes beyond the control or without the fault of the 
Party claiming an extension of time to perform.  An extension of time for any such cause 
shall only be for the period of the forced delay, which period shall commence to run from 
the time of the commencement of the cause, if notice is delivered by the Party claiming 
such extension no later than forty-five (45) days after the commencement of the cause.  
If, however, notice by the Party claiming such extension is sent to the other Party more 
than forty-five (45) days after the commencement of the cause, the period shall commence 
to run only forty-five (45) days prior to the giving of such notice.  Times of performance 
under this Agreement may also be extended in writing by CCDC and Participant. 

 
 J. Inspection of Books and Records 
 

CCDC has the right, upon not less than seventy-two (72) hours’ notice, at all reasonable 
times, to inspect the books and records of Participant pertaining to the Public 
Improvements. 
 
No inspection by CCDC shall, however, cause any document, information, or record of 
Participant to become a public record subject to public disclosure pursuant to Title 74, 



 

 

Chapter 1 of the Idaho Code, unless such document, information, or record is actually 
delivered to CCDC by Participant.   
 
Except as set forth in this Agreement or other agreement executed by the Parties, 
recorded by the Parties, or made part of the records of CCDC, the Parties acknowledge 
that Participant’s documents, records, plans, and information in any form related to the 
Project shall be confidential unless and until such documents are provided to CCDC, and 
then CCDC shall take such action as is permissible under Title 74, Chapter 1 of the Idaho 
Code to protect the confidentiality of documents provided by Participant that have been 
clearly marked as confidential with reference to the applicable section of Idaho Code under 
which the documents are deemed not subject to public disclosure.   

 
 K. Promotion of Project   
 

Participant agrees CCDC may promote the Public Improvements and CCDC’s 
involvement with the Public Improvements.  Such promotion includes reasonable signage 
at the Site notifying the public of CCDC’s involvement with the Public Improvements. 

 
VII. AMENDMENTS TO THIS AGREEMENT; WAIVERS 
 
 CCDC and Participant agree to mutually consider reasonable requests for amendments 

to this Agreement and any attachments hereto which may be made by any of the Parties 
hereto, lending institutions, bond counsel, financial consultants, or underwriters to CCDC, 
provided said requests are consistent with this Agreement and would not alter the basic 
business purposes included herein or therein.  All amendments to and waivers of the 
provisions of this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by the appropriate authorities 
of CCDC and Participant. 

 
VIII. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement, including the following listed Exhibits A through E, inclusive and 

incorporated herein by reference, constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of 
the Parties. 

 
Exhibit A – Legal Description 
Exhibit B – Project Depiction and Renderings 
Exhibit C – Public Improvement Plans 
Exhibit D – Schedule of Eligible Expenses Estimate 
Exhibit E – Confirmation of Reimbursement (Draft) 

 
 

This Agreement integrates all of the terms and conditions mentioned herein or incidental 
hereto and supersedes all negotiations or previous agreements between the Parties with 
respect to all or any part of the subject matter thereof. 

 
  
 
 

End of Agreement   |   Signatures appear on the following page. 



 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have signed this Agreement the day and year 
below written to be effective as first indicated above. 
 
 
   
 
 
     Capital City Development Corporation (“CCDC”) 
  
 
             
Date     John Brunelle, Executive Director 
 
   
 
 R.L.R. Investments, L.L.C. (“Participant”) 
 

 
 

             
Date     Jeff Haungs, VP 

 
 
 

 
  



 

 

Exhibit A 
 

Legal Description 
 

 
 
 
 

  



 

 

Exhibit A (continued) 
 

Depiction of Project Site 
 
 

 
 



 

 

Exhibit B 
 

Project Depiction and Renderings 
 

 

 
 



 

 

Exhibit C 
 

Public Improvement Plans and Renderings 
 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

Exhibit C (continued) 
 

Public Improvement Plans and Renderings 
 

 
 



 

 

Exhibit D 
Schedule of Eligible Expenses Estimate 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 



 

 

Exhibit D 
Schedule of Eligible Expenses Estimate 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 
 



 

 

Exhibit D 
Schedule of Eligible Expenses Estimate 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
  



 

 

Exhibit E 
 

Confirmation of Reimbursement (Draft) 
 
 

CONFIRMATION OF CCDC REIMBURSEMENT AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE 
 
This CONFIRMATION OF CCDC REIMBURSEMENT AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE (“Payment 
Schedule”) is entered into between the CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, a 
public body, corporate and politic, organized and existing under the Idaho Urban Renewal Law 
of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho Code, and the Local Economic Development 
Act of 1988 as amended, Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code (“CCDC”), and R.L.R. Investments, 
L.L.C. an Idaho _Ohio LLC____________________ (“Participant”). 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
1. CCDC Contribution 
 
CCDC has, pursuant to the procedures set forth in the Type 2 General Assistance Participation 
Agreement by and between the Capital City Development Corporation and Participant with an 
effective date of __________ (the “Participation Agreement”), determined the CCDC 
Reimbursement for the Development, as those terms are defined in the Participation 
Agreement, shall be _________________ and __/100 dollars ($________________) (the 
“CCDC Reimbursement”). 
 
2. Payment Schedule  
 
CCDC agrees to reimburse Participant for the amount of the CCDC Reimbursement, or less as 
set forth and explained below, without interest from the Effective Date of this Payment Schedule 
as follows: 
 
CCDC shall make a total of six (6) “Annual Payments”.  The amounts of the Annual Payments 
shall be determined based on the tax increment proceeds paid by Participant and received by 
CCDC from the value added to the Site over and above the 2020 tax year assessed value of the 
Site upon Final Completion of the project and starting at Occupancy valuation year.  The 2020 
tax year assessed value of the Site, as determined by the Ada County Assessor is 
$__1,158,700____________.    
 
First Annual Payment – Due on or before September 30, ____ 
CCDC shall pay Participant eighty percent (80%) of the increased tax increment generated from 
the Development on the Site actually received by CCDC as of September 30 of _______ [insert 
year] 
 
Second Annual Payment – Due on or before September 30, ____ 
CCDC shall pay Participant the lesser of the remaining unpaid CCDC Reimbursement (after 
crediting any prior payments) OR eighty percent (80%) of the increased tax increment 
generated from the Development on the Site actually received by CCDC as of September 30 of 
_______ [insert year] 
 
Third Annual Payment – Due on or before September 30, ____ 



 

 

CCDC shall pay Participant the lesser of the remaining unpaid CCDC Reimbursement (after 
crediting any prior payments) OR eighty percent (80%) of the increased tax increment 
generated from the Development on the Site actually received by CCDC as of September 30 of 
_______ [insert year] 
 
 CCDC may redeem, at any time, in whole or in part, without penalty, the then principal 
amount outstanding. 
 

Participant acknowledges that the sum of the four Annual Payments may be less 
than the CCDC Reimbursement if the tax increment generated by the Development 
during the Reimbursement Period is less than the CCDC Reimbursement. 
 

If the CCDC Reimbursement is not fully reimbursed by the four Annual Payments 
or by the Termination Date of the Plan, CCDC will not be obligated to make any additional 
payments. 
 
3. Limitation on Making Payments 
 
 It is the intention of the parties that Participant shall only be paid from the Incremental 
Tax Revenues, if any, which are paid or are payable to CCDC as a direct result of the Private 
Development constructed by the Participant on the Site.  If, for any reason, the Incremental Tax 
Revenues anticipated to be received by CCDC as a direct result of the Private Development on 
the Site are reduced, curtailed, or limited in any way by enactments, initiative referendum, or 
judicial decree, CCDC shall have no obligation to pay the tax increment obligation to Participant 
as described in this Agreement from other sources or monies which CCDC has or might 
hereinafter receive. 
 
4. Except as expressly modified above, the terms and conditions of the Participation 
Agreement are still binding on CCDC and Participant as set forth in such Participation 
Agreement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Payment Schedule has been entered into as of the date 
and year first above written. 
 
CCDC: 
CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 
By:___________________________ 
________________, Executive Director 
______________________ 
Date 
 
 
PARTICIPANT: 
___________________ 
By: ________________________ 
Its: ________________________ 
________________________ 
Date 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLANK PAGE 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IV. 
ACTION  
ITEMS 

 
 
  



Page 1 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 

1015 W. Main Street Blvd. – 11th and Main Apartments -- Type One 
Participation Agreement Designation with Main Eleven LLC C/O Revolve 
SE, Inc.  

Date: 

June 8, 2020

Staff Contact: 
Brady Shinn 

Attachments: 
1) Site Map
2) Images
3) Rendering

Action Requested: 
Review 11th and Main Apartments as a project eligible to utilize the Type 1 Streetscape Grant 
Participation Agreement and direct staff to continue negotiating a final agreement with Main 
Eleven LLC for future board approval.  

Background: 

Revolve Development, out of Seattle, Washington, has purchased part the former Safari Inn, 

located at 1015 W. Main Street (Ada County Assessor Parcel #R1013000956). Revolve is 

redeveloping the 11th and Main building, transforming it from a 43-room hotel into 41 residential 

apartments, mostly studio units. Additionally, a teak-wood lattice façade will be added onto the 

existing stucco exterior walls. The existing retail spaces will stay operational during the 

renovation and remain after construction. CCDC encourages owner/tenant improvements which 

refresh downtown buildings, encourage occupancy, and enhance the public realm and 

pedestrian experience. 

The redevelopment began in April 2020 and will conclude in early 2021. The site is in the 

Westside District.  

In total, the renovation from hotel rooms to residential apartments encompasses 54,000 SF. The 

project estimates Total Development Costs for the interior and façade renovations to total 

$8,600,000. The site is currently assessed at $3,340,000 

The project’s actual scope is relatively minor due to previous work done by CCDC: The 

Applicant will replace the alley drive ramp on W. 11th Street and bring it into order with current 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) standards. The project’s total Estimated Eligible expenses 

are $22,000. The existing streetscapes are recent and were installed by CCDC as part of its 

Capital Improvements work. 



Page 2 
 

In addition to meeting the program requirements, the project also promotes a CCDC and City 

objective to improve pedestrian connectivity downtown, especially ADA-accessibility on an 

existing alley drive ramp. Re-using properties is the most environmentally conscious approach 

and Type 1 Participation Program projects are the perfect fit for these type of renovations. 

Project Summary and Timeline: 

 Located at 1015 W. Main Street, corner of 11th and Main (Westside URD) 

 Total project features renovating a portion of the Safari Inn into a 41-unit residential 

apartments (37 studios, 4-1BDs) 

 $22,000 Estimated Costs for public improvements to renovate the alley’s driveway on W 

11th Street 

 November 15, 2019 – Design Review approval 

 April 01, 2020 – Building Permit approval from the City of Boise 

 June 2020 - Type 1 Agreement Designation 

 July 2020 – CCDC Board Approval of Type 1 Agreement 

 April 2020 - Construction Start 

 January 2021 – Construction complete, Developer submits costs for reimbursement 

Fiscal Notes: 
Per the Type 1 policy, the grant can reimburse for an amount not to exceed $150,000 of eligible 

expenses. Main Eleven LLC anticipates approximately $22,000 in materials and labor costs for 

the alley drive ramp.  

The project meets all program requirements, and resources have been approved for this use in 

the FY 21 budget.  

The Type 1 reimbursement will be paid upon completion of the project, and prior to the 

Westside District’s termination on September 30, 2026.  

Staff Recommendation: 

Provide feedback and direct for staff to continue negotiating and finalizing the terms of the  

Type 1 Participation Agreement for future board approval.  

 

Suggested Motion: 
I move to direct staff to negotiate a final Type 1 Streetscape Grant Participation Agreement 
with Main Eleven LLC for future board approval. 
 

 

  



Page 3 
 

  

 

Exhibit 1 – Site Location and Site Map 

Exhibit 1 – Site Location 

Exhibit 1 – Site Map 



Page 4 
 

 

Exhibit 2 – Images and Rendering 

Exhibit 2 – Rendering 

(W. 11th & Main) 



Page 5 
 

 Exhibit 3 – Streetscape Plan 

 

Exhibit 3 – Streetscape Plan 

 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLANK PAGE 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 

Adopt Resolution #1659, Authorizing Purchase of Property Addressed 
as 1715 W. Idaho Street 

Date: 

June 8, 2020 

Staff Contact: 
Brady Shinn 

Attachments: 
1- Area Map 
2- Resolution #1659 
3- Purchase and Sale Agreement 
4- First Addendum 
5- Due Diligence Report Summary 
6- CCDC Property Acquisition Guidelines 

Action Requested: 
Adopt Resolution #1659, approving and authorizing the execution of the Purchase and Sale 
Agreement for the property located at 1715 W Idaho Street 

Background: 

The 0.4-acre property is located mid-block between West 17th and West Idaho streets within the 

Westside Urban Renewal District. The site is currently a bare, unimproved lot with a paved 

basketball court. The site is zoned R3 with a Downtown Design overlay. The R3 zone 

accommodates 43.5 units per acre and a maximum 45’ height limit. 

The site is currently permitted under a Conditional Use Permit for 17 residential units in a single 

structure, multi-family building. 8 of those 17 units are permitted for short term rentals. 

The permittee, Cinco Port LLC, has listed the property for sale and in April 2020, Capital City 

Development Corporation (“CCDC”) submitted an offer for $605,000, which was accepted by 

Cinco Port LLC. Should the Board of Commissioners approve the purchase, the sale will close 

July 1st, 2020. 

CCDC conducted inspections of the property in the course of its due diligence, and those 

inspections support CCDC’s purchase of the site. Further details on the known existing site 

conditions are available in Attachment #5, “Due Diligence Report Summary.”  

This site qualifies for CCDC acquisition and disposition in a multitude of ways. Certain site 

conditions, most noticeably the existing soft soils, represent a large hurdle for the typical private 

developer market for a site of this size and location. As permitted, the site would require 

extensive soil remediation. Those costs would ultimately be passed on to the tenants, raising 

the rental units’ price point. Additionally, considering the existing permitted use for short term 

rentals, CCDC’s purchase allows for a new vision for the property that is more in line with the 



 

Page 2 
 

City of Boise and CCDC’s housing goals. Without CCDC disposition, this site likely could remain 

vacant and undeveloped for the foreseeable future. 

Therefore, once the site is secure, CCDC anticipates a Request for Proposal process to allow 

developers to submit a new use that better aligns with the City of Boise’s current housing needs. 

Further details on this site’s applicability and eligibility for CCDC acquisition can be found in 

Attachment #6, “CCDC Property Acquisition Guidelines.” 

The attached property map depicts the nearby properties and the property owners. The site is 

bounded by a parking lot owned neighboring church, an alleyway, and an abandoned residential 

home. 

The initial Purchase and Sale Agreement (PSA) was entered into on April 14, 2020, with an 

addendum dated May 5, 2020.  It is contingent upon CCDC Board approval. $25,000 in 

refundable Earnest Money was deposited into escrow immediately thereafter. Should the board 

on June 8th decide to not pursue the acquisition, that deposit will be refunded. The $25,000 

deposit becomes nonrefundable on June 9th.  Staff negotiated an appropriate due diligence 

period to ensure proper investigation into the site and to provide ample time for CCDC staff to 

investigate the property and obtain necessary third party reports.  The following reports have 

been completed: a boundary survey, an appraisal, a title commitment and an environmental site 

assessment.  The seller also provided a geotechnical report dated January 2020. A complete 

list of 3rd party due diligence reports and a summary finding is attached hereto.  

Summary Purchase and Sale Agreement and Amendment Terms: 

Term Initial 

Purchase Price: $605,000 

Closing Date: July 1st, 2020  

Due Diligence: 53 days 

Inspection Period ends June 9, 2020 

 

Summary of Value 

The appraised value based on a restricted use appraisal dated May 15, 2020 by Valbridge 

Property Advisors is $605,000. This is the purchase price. 

Fiscal Notes: 

The FY 2020 Budget as approved by the Board on August 28, 2019 included $4 million in FY 

2020 for “Property Acquisition.” The purchase of this property would utilize its proportional 

amount of that budget line item 

Purchase Price  $     605,000  
Due Diligence Reports  $     7,225 

Total  $     612,225 + Closing Costs 
 

 



 

Page 3 
 

Staff Recommendation: 

Adopt Resolution #1659. 

Suggested Motion: 
 
I move to adopt Resolution #1659, approving and authorizing the execution of the Purchase 
and Sale Agreement for the property located at 1715 W Idaho Street 
 

 



bshinn
Text Box
Attachment #1 - Area Map

bshinn
Text Box
Attachment #1 - Area Map



5/5/2020Map Scale:

Legend

0.01 Miles 760.86

Railroad

Roads (<2,000 scale)

<all other values>

Interstate

Ramp

Principal Arterial

Collector

Minor Arterial

Local

Parks

Alley

Driveway

Parks

Address

Townships

Sections

Condos

Parcels

Ada County Assessor
This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for general reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may 
not be accurate, current, or otherwise reliable. THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION OR LEGAL PURPOSES.



RESOLUTION No. 1659   - 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1659  
 
 
BY  THE  BOARD  OF  COMMISSIONERS  OF  THE  URBAN  RENEWAL  AGENCY  OF 
BOISE CITY, IDAHO: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN 
RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, APPROVING AN AGREEMENT 
OF PURCHASE AND SALE BY AND BETWEEN THE URBAN RENEWAL 
AGENCY OF THE CITY OF BOISE AND CINCO PORT, LLC, AND RATIFYING 
EXECUTION OF SAME; AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CHAIRMAN, 
VICE-CHAIRMAN, OR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND SECRETARY, 
RESPECTIVELY, TO EXECUTE AND ATTEST ANY AND ALL DOCUMENTS 
OR AGREEMENTS NECESSARY TO ACQUIRE THE PROPERTY, SUBJECT 
TO CERTAIN CONTINGENCIES; AUTHORIZING ANY TECHNICAL 
CORRECTIONS TO THE AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE 
APPROPRIATION OF CERTAIN FUNDS PURSUANT TO THE AGREEMENT; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

THIS RESOLUTION, is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized 
under the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, 
Idaho Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, 
Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively the "Act"), as a duly created and functioning urban 
renewal agency for Boise City, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as the "Agency"). 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Boise City, Idaho (the “City”), after notice duly 
published, conducted a public hearing on the Westside Downtown Urban Renewal Plan (the 
“Westside Plan”), and following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 6108 on 
December 4, 2001, approving the Westside Plan and making certain findings; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Cinco Port, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company (the “Owner”), is the 
owner of certain real property (the “Property”) located in the City of Boise, County of Ada, State 
of Idaho, at 1715 West Idaho Street, Boise, which address is within the Westside Plan Urban 
Renewal Area; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, under the terms and provisions of the Westside Plan, the Property or 
portions thereof have been identified by Agency staff as a potential site for private development, 
for certain public improvements, or for other mixed uses consistent with the Westside Plan; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency’s Executive Director submitted an offer to purchase the Property 
by signing the “RE-24 Vacant Land Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement,” which has 
been signed by the Owner and the Agency Executive Director, a copy of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit A; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency desires to purchase the Property from Cinco Port, LLC, for 
purposes of redevelopment in compliance with the Westside Plan; and, 
 

bshinn
Text Box
Attachment #2 - Resolution #1659



RESOLUTION No. 1659   - 2 
 

 WHEREAS, based upon information received by the Agency during the period of due 
diligence, the Agency finds that the price required by Cinco Port, LLC, is based upon 
reasonable market information and that the purchase price constitutes a compromise; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has sufficient funds to acquire the Property; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency Board finds it in the best interest of the Agency and the public to 
approve the purchase of the Property and to authorize the Agency Board Chairman, 
Vice-Chairman, or Executive Director and Secretary, respectively, to execute all closing 
documents and to pay the purchase price subject to the conditions set forth below. 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1:  That the above statements are true and correct. 
 
Section 2:  That the Agency Board hereby approves and ratifies the Executive 

Director’s execution of the “RE-24 Vacant Land Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement,” 
attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Section 3: That the Agency Chair, Vice-Chair, or Executive Director and Secretary, 

respectively, are authorized and directed to execute any and all documents or agreements 
necessary to acquire the Property, including the documents necessary to appropriate and 
tender the purchase price of SIX HUNDRED THOUSAND FIVE DOLLARS ($605,000), along 
with specified closing costs from the Agency FY 2020 budget, subject to satisfaction of all 
contingencies set forth in the Agreement, including but not limited to any necessary escrow 
instructions and any necessary technical changes to the Agreement or other closing documents, 
upon advice from Agency legal counsel that said changes are consistent with the provisions of 
this Resolution. 

 
Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

adoption and approval. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on 

June 8, 2020.  Signed by the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners and attested by the 
Secretary to the Board of Commissioners on June 8, 2020. 
 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY 
 
 
By:        
     Dana Zuckerman, Chair 

ATTEST: 
 
 
By:        
      Lauren McLean, Secretary 




��������	���	� �2�6?
���?���.�%"?

���������������������
�����������	�
��
/��,?�,??�����7?��#��#�?�&#/*�/�?*��?/��?�#/�*�?�&�3!�#/�?�#��3��#�?#7?//��!�#/,�?
��?7&3?�5�?#7?)3�,/�&#,�?�'$-4 0?8'4+?�1'+$�9?�$��'+?���'4$0�$0?���&*�?,��#�#��?

�����
��Jgư¥/77/J¤;MP�ư;Jp¡�Í;JÐ½ư¥;heg�hưf;ÓÑ¤/h;gJýư/Jvư¥/77/Jhvưg ưe/�;Ŗ/�Ñ¡;¤v�ư/Ð7qMÓMJhPưg7

���������kRikRmRepKpYgemÁegpÁRuikRmmbvÁmRpÁTgkpWÁWRkRYeÁmWKbbÁMRÁMYePYeVÁrigeÁRZpWRkÁiKkpv"Á

� rIYư7<8<:7:7 �����K¡§��Á8<
Á:7:7Á
�

���	�
�����
������

(:=;?	? ><?�?

�] b[mpYeVÁKVReOvÁd�§�ÁM °��®Ák���ÁR®¯�¯�Ám�©´���®Á )ã���ư<
���Yư:7?#;>>$=>77Á ��aYưxeÁ�ÁK
�CE�½���

Ĳư 0������ư #����ưk���·Ás�§��§Á �ąO���ư §���·J��§�� ¯¯��®#� �Á <9���ưYư :7?%=?=&>>:8Á
ĳư mRbb]eVÁKVReOvÁm¯ «ÁO ���§�����ÁbbOÁ )äCB�ư<
���ưYư:7?#?<8#?;:7 d�óưYư5e

�
K

��*�F���
	 ���|���ư #����ư^�¸Ám¯ ¬Á �ĆO���ư ®¯ ¬J®¯ ¬� ���§����#� � <9*��ưYư :7?"?<8#?;:7Á

8"ÁMrvRkAÁ¯��Ár§���Ák���µ��ÁK����·Á �Á¯��ÁO�±Á �ÁM �®�
Á [��� 
Á� ���Á�³®���®®Á�®ÁO�¢�¯��ÁO�±ÁP�´�� ¢���¯ÁO §£ §�¯� �Á
Űư HN�������E$�ư ������ư �MrvRk��Á �����ư 	Dư ��2�,���[ư ���ư "
�ư�����������ư ��00&�ư ��W���ư ��ư ��ë-ư �9�ư �����%KƉ�ư �$�B�L��>ư ��-ư ����	�ư
�`����S	��ư ��������ư �Dư
� �(ưô<t)<��\wõưOgddgebvÁ `egteÁKmÁx8>y8 y=�tD�®2̄ ���+�z� z  zmz̄ {§� y�|¯Á��QQQQQšQưĜ@ĂļĝěĹĞo@@Ĕ@ĸďęĚć

�
] M �®�Á 6���ưK��Á 6D�!"�mư sÌþư ś��ư ?;>7:Á �������ư ��������ư ��Êư
��
�] )�ưA����ưI$��`���C��ư#�"��,��ư��ư�a
��è	ưKÁ �R¶����¯Á�³®¯Á��� �¡��¹Á §������Á ��§Á���Áàŷư®�����Á §Á���¯�����Á�¹Á
��] ��vq7ư=.^ưPMffq7ĥ¹ư
�� Ãcư�ĵ�Æ��īư Õ�7pe/ŕMư Õ7;pMÉưPTƧưeñ.^�8^ư TƤ�ưh_1ñ:ű~ŴưÍ1ll=°:ư/.^ưŜ8°1ưp8.X:ư
�� V������ư����ư	
�ư�����%���ư\��Ô�ư#4Iư6)4Ìs\r)4�ư Z!�"ư©���?����ư����C��ư�����3Çư
�	 ŗ_ª:ư1ŻŵƎưª:ưi1.XT.æ8.Xươ�1~ưX_8ư:=l8ÿư ��¨T~=.i8�ư=~^Á¯�ưi¬1:T~æư1¨ư=.ƨư1X_8�ư��¯�8ƚư �v�:ư�ưŐ1ưZ4�#ư��ưë�åư����Uºư
�
 ;#ÁUYeKeOYKbÁpRkdmAÁe ¯�@ÁK	P	R	TÁ �³®¯Á���Á³¡Á¯ Á¯ ¯��Á¡³¨���®�Á¡§���'Á
�ƛư úŁ¼cư ´ư:=777Á RKkeRmpÁ dgeRvAÁ xp yµ¾�G�¿²À��z�´{�3p0�y y³y® y�4�,�-P y .�� y��̈ ®�K}���w)� {§ /O����¯® H���!���1���I�����
�� +'5&�ư
�����ư�SŹ�W�ư�
�ư���G�ư�����áư� �²��ư��ư�������ưÔD!��ư³
��
ư�,�z�ư��ư�������ư��ưń'w��ư����ư�|�����¿ư&�ï���ưO*���ư���%���ư��Èư

R´�������Á�ºAÁ W���ÁM»AÁ Q���´�§��@Á P�¤ ®�¯��AÁ
�ư6��k ��t$�V���L���ư+�U�ư �����kư)���Wư Úư'���ư�����V"ư���ư#����	��B�ư
�ư<�Ə����-ư6
��«ư şư6�D(���ư6�}���� �ư��	
��ưŢÆư�Üư��������ư����ưH�
���ưÙı¦ư L� �ư'���ư������	ư��ç�î�����ư��ư

Šư6��
���ö�ư6,�BU
�ư��î�ư\������� £D��ư
��×��ư�������ưÅư

�ư���ư���E���ư�ư
�â	ư�-��U3ư�jư����������cư
�ư���ư����L��ư�ư

#���������ư
�����ư��B	���ưÅư

ƪƫư
qXSÁlSnjhfn\NcSÁNlhaSlÁ nXLccÁ NSBÁ ~dz� z§�zM{ ȳ ¯ y��y®Á����������Á�Á

�� û�¹ğư/f¡ưp/PeưgÏŅq7Éư Âư4)ư ü5��ư;ŸưX_ªƜư T:ư=.ư=¬lưi=:_ư1ż8°ư^¯ư.1Ɲưi1Ɔ�l�X8ư P8iXT1.:ưÄĬư=.^ưÄM½ư ¨él¬ư àƃ=.Ƃ:ưƦéƞ_ưJÁ/ưH4��ư#���������º¿ư ;Ïư
�] OKmWÁ gTTRkÁ MrvRk�mÁ gMbYVKpYgeÁpgÁ ObgmRÁ mWKbbÁ egpÁMRÁ mrM_ROpÁ pgÁ KevÁ TYeKeO]KbÁ OgepYeVReOv'Á +'5��ư ��2���ư "�ư ���G���ư
�� ��AA��ư%�F,��ưƬưy�����(�ư����ưZŽG$ưÙĴ¦ư �jư��â	ư����U3ư�Ƌ ư	
�ư����ư��ư�����"����ư�jư	
��ư��2�� ��	ư��ư�-�ư��ƗC��ư%������ư����� �����ư��ư��ä������ư
�� �?�>�ư �����ư �������ư ���$�(��ư "�ư��D��ư�2�í�������Ġư #������y��ư>��?}�!	����!ư ���z����nư ���ư ��ư ��"ư �� �F��ư ��ư �ư����ư��ư �ư `�����ư ���Uư ��ư �K��!B���ư
�	 �	�	� ��"Àư
�

�] �O�ÁO�®�Á¡§ ����®Á�§ �Á�� ¯��§Á®���AÁ �v�®ÁÚưe ÁZ4�łưC�ư��SEư����U3ư

�� �P�(Á ġ́ưţ�Û��ư���� eRtÁ bgKeÁ ikgORRQmAÁ s�ư �ư ��}��2ư �2��	�Ɛư 	
��ư Ʃ��ư ��V����ư ��ư �
�ư ���������ư ����«ư 	
��ư 	k��ư �ç��� ��Eư �(ư
�
] ����������ư����ư+'w��ư�������!�ư�
�ư���-�%���ưSL�������Êư
��] TYkmpÁbgKeÁ��ư�ưĢưĩŀĿķĽĄĺƭľ@Ĉ@@@ĉ !�Eư���-?>���ư ��"����ư���Ƣ�����bư	
���,ưőưdŇ#[ưÂư]#[ư �6)4]�4us)£#0bư �ưŉN�ËĀ
��] �ư�'�#0ưI&ř�¢�ÖO&4uāưĭư)uN&�ưÛ������Üư%��
ư��"����ư!�	ư��ư�a����ư@ĎĐ@Ċµư�*ư�ưV�W�*>ư��ư�Qư���H�3ư��Çư
��] �ưdKa��ư����ư�)E9��ưŤ��ť�Ý�ÝÞ�ưcư r�ư �
$ư�G��	ư+Řw�tưK�ư ?�����mư �SF�2ư�a��������ư����ư���	
ư�ã�Ƙ�[ư �*ư�y	�L�ư�k�ư��>������ưź��������mư
�� +'5��÷�ư&�����	ưO����ư(
�ì®ư��ư`�	����>ư��ư+'5��cư
�� mROgePÁbgKeÁ���ưŦ���ưĕđċooooė¾	
�*²�9ư � �N#nư �]#Ħư � 6�£]�4\Ò)4#0bư �įN�#mư ��Ø�#0ư I&]ÎA�<O&4u[ư
�	 �ưŒ\ň&�ư������ŧưĻư%ƀ�
ưK�	�����ư�*	ư��ư�a����ư��ưµư��ư�ư��W���ư��ưŨũư���2H�3ư��Èư��dƁa$�ư��	�ư�)	,�Ƒư�ĒĖħē���¾
��] bgKeÁKiibYOKpYgeAÁ+'5��ưœư
��ư������áư)�ư ��
�-ìư���z�ư ���ư�?B,ư���!Z�3ģư���
��ư�Qư�?������ư����ưH���ư ŝİưŔŎư��ư{��Eư�-��«3ư*�ưj�!�{ư����V	����
��] ��ư ��ƅư ���±���bư +'5&�ư ��2�$�ư 	*ư �?ï��
ư ��0A&�ư %L	
ư �Á µ§�¯¯��Á � ���§��¯� �Á ®� µ���Á �����§Á �¡¡§ ´��Á  �Á �§���¯Á §�¡ ª
Á ��� ��Á ´�§�����¯� ��Á
�� ���¯Á §�¯� ®
Á ���Á �´������Á  �Á®³������¯Á�³��®Á���6 §Á¡§ ����®Á����®®�Á ¯ Á�� ®�Á ¯§��®��¯� �Á T.ư�Á�����§Á����¡¯����Á ¯ Á¯��ÁmRbbRk�m�Á ���
�� ®³����¯Á  ��¹Á ¯ Á ®�¯�®���¯ §¹Á �¡¡§��®��Á ���Á �����Á �����§Á ³���¨µ¨�¯���"Á Y�Á��Á �¡¡§��®��Á �®Á§�¦³�§��Á �¹Á �����§�Á ¯��ÁikgiRkpvÁ �³®¯Á �¡¡§��®�Á �¯Á
�� � ¯Á ��®®Á ¯���Á ¡³§���®�Á ¡§���Á �ư +'5&�¶�ư ��2�$��ư O����ư �,�-|ư y�ư `�	����ư �Fư +'Ś��¶�ư �������ư ò!����ư ��0A��nư ��ư ��00��ø�ư ����ư �C�������nư
�� ���$�ư��ư������ư	
�ư�?��
���ư���$ư	�ư ��Eư�9�ư ��������ưG�Ƅ��bư ��ư%
K�,ư����ư×&00��ư�
���ư��ư$����z��ưF�ư�ư����ư��ư�,�ư��V�K���ư�!�ư�
���ư
�G�ưÃ�ư
�� ,���ư �D ư ����V	ư F9�����ư 	�ư ����ſư +Ø5&�ư ��ư �!�ư ƍ��$ư ��?���*�Àư ���/�./�)!/ ##�./ �!%/Ųư �! / -�*�/ ����%� */ �! ��*�! )/  �/ �!)*)/  �/ ��!)�
�� *% )�*�" / #(,����/ ��/ !*��%/ *�&�)/ �/ �! ��*�! )/!�/ *��)/��'��� */'/ �+�������/  �/ *��/ �-/�! /�!�)/  !*/ � �&�)�/ *��/ �!)*)/!%/%�$+�'�� *)/*!/ *��/
�� 
����	�/  eŃư �/sK@Á sjư ���-������nư ©�ư ��ư �ó��(���ư �����ư "
��ư���%�Ɵ
�	������ư �!�ư �",�ư �W�G��C�Ɗ�ư �jư �
�(ư ���"���bư +'w��ư �
�{|ư ���ư ��ư��{���"��ư ��ư
�	 �� �Ŷ��ư 	
�ư �?W�
�(�ư ��ư �
�ư <��Ö��\5ư >����y��ư 
�`���ư �ư "*ư ��B�ư ���ư ��!����ư �ư ��ƕ��"���ư ��ư &�2����ư O����ư �������(ư �ư ��
�Ɣ³��$ư ²����(ư
�
 +'5�tư 
��ư ����ư ��G��ư ��ư ����>�!B�ư %��9ư N'IĪdN#ư *ư ]Ëư ������ ����ư �ư %Ɩ"ð�!ư (���� �í	ư ��ư �
�ư d�����ư N�ò�è��ư 6*  ����*��[ư ]�	�ƒ�!(ư
�� #� ����±����!ư �ư �ưI����ư����(� $��ư �����ư ��E	C��ư ��ƙ
ư 	
�ư ���`�����ư G�{��ư ��ư 	
�ư<�)<��u5ư ��ư ��ðư ���ư F
��ư �,�ư ��®��ư �����ư ų�ư �	���>ư ��ư 	
$
�� ���	W��	c
��
�� Ŋ�ư���,ư%������ư����ê�}�"�D�ư������ư��ư�·Ķ»ưD�ư�·Į»ư ��ư���ư �����ƥ��ư��ư��A¢��Z�3ư³�	9��ư	
�ư�F2L��ư	C �ư��z��	��mư �&ŏ0��H�3ư ��ư��ư�k��ư*�����ư������ư
�� �9K�ư���� ���ư��ư!���S����ư+'5&tH�3ư��ư%�����ư�Sư���
ư���B��-�F���ư%�	
ê�ưČ�Ęč���L���(ư���(ư HE9�$$ư Ş�¦ư �Sư-�žư����U3ư�å��ư%��		$�ư������}�	���ư%��ư
�� ���©2��Ĥư r�ư ��AAÎ�ư�*��ư��	ư�����-ư%�	
��ư �9�ư�±��	ư 	CƇ�ư ������ư ���������ư ��ư��	ư���	kư 
����[ư ��A¢��ư�
�-®ư��ư��� ��ư	�ư
�G�ư �����F�>ư(ƣ�
ư%2�����ư

MrvRk�mÁŋ��	K�|�ư¸ĨƠƮă¼¸ư�§�ưÞůưI���ßxRRxRRŪư PMffq7ùPưr��"����ưū§R§ư3ZưŬ��ŭưI�	�ưßRxRxxRưŮư
7?UVO?5WV:8]5Z] V>:]�84>K]�UUK6?4VBKI]K;]*��"].&*,[�] �J6�]/>@U]<KPH]>4U]5::J]8:U?=J:8]4J8]AU]MOKX?8:9]<KO]WU:]5Z] V>:]O:4E]:UV4V:]NPK<:UU?KJ4FU]Y>K]4O:] H:H5:OU]K<] V>:]

L]�UUK6?4V?KJ]K<]*��#/&*,\�] 2-�]�3]�%3]'0��+] (�+-'%] -](+'� � 0���]��KMZOA=>V]�84>K]�UUK6C4V?KJ]K<]*��$1&*,[�] �J6�]�FG]O?=>VU]Q:U:OX:8�]

,:OD4F��] �������	������
�����	�

kR�:<ÁsKOKepÁbKePÁirkOWKmRÁKePÁmKbRÁKVkRRdRepÁ i���Á9Á  �Á �

)O:M4R:9]5Z�]!4Z],VKTZ] Ōư ,VKTZ]�KHH:O6A4F]"$�] ōư UVKSZ�UVKOZ6KHH:O6?4F	6KH] Òư
������
]
ƯņƌƓƈư
�o��¥����¯¼Á

/����ưį��ưÃ���

Brian Tibbs
4/17/20

bshinn
Text Box
Attachment #3 - Form RE-24 - Purchase and Sale Agreement



"QSJM��������

Brian Tibbs
4/17/20



"QSJM��������

Brian Tibbs
4/17/20



"QSJM��������

Brian Tibbs
4/17/20



"QSJM��������

Brian Tibbs
4/17/20



"QSJM��������

Brian Tibbs
4/17/20



Brian Tibbs
4/17/20

Brian Tibbs
7

Brian Tibbs
X

Brian Tibbs
500 Westover Dr. #10431

Brian Tibbs
Sanford

Brian Tibbs
ND

Brian Tibbs
27330

Brian Tibbs
Brian Tibbs

Brian Tibbs
X

Brian Tibbs
208-286-4555

Brian Tibbs
BrianLeeTibbs@gmail.com





bshinn
Text Box
Attachment #4 - Form RE-11 -Addendum 1 to PSA



Description Dated

Additional 

Information/ 

Vendor

Summary of Findings

1 Appraisal 5/15/2020
Valbridge Property 

Advisors
 As-Is Market Value of $605,000                        

2

Phase I 

Environmental 

Assessment

5/26/2020
Casterson and 

Associates, Inc.
No REC's Identified

3 Boundary Survey 5/28/2020
Accurate Surveying 

and Testing
Existing topography and property boundaries mapped. 

4
Geotechnical 

Investigation
1/13/2020 ABCO Engineering

Provided by Seller. Existing soils require remediation: 

"undocumented fill" or are unsuitable for original permitted 

design, down to approx. 15' below grade. Groundwater measured 

at 8' below grade.

Due Diligence Items 1715 W Idaho

Other Buyer Obtained Due Diligence

../../Due Diligence/Appraisal/Restricted Use Appraisal_1010_2.2018.pdf
../../Due Diligence/Environmental/62177085 10 Ten Office Building ESA Report_Optimized.pdf
../../Due Diligence/Environmental/62177085 10 Ten Office Building ESA Report_Optimized.pdf
../../Due Diligence/Environmental/62177085 10 Ten Office Building ESA Report_Optimized.pdf
../../Due Diligence/ALTA Survey/1010 W Jefferson St - ALTA REVISED 3-27-18pdf.pdf
../../Due Diligence/Building Inspection/_1010 Jefferson - Existing Facility Analysis_small.pdf
../../Due Diligence/Building Inspection/_1010 Jefferson - Existing Facility Analysis_small.pdf
bshinn
Text Box
Attachment #5 - Due Diligence Summary



1715 W. Idaho Street 

Addendum A 

Property Acquisition Guidelines 
REQUIREMENTS: 

1) Property is located within an Urban Renewal District 

2) Staff may provide findings that acquisition is likely to advance the Urban Renewal Plan.  

3) Potential redevelopment opportunities are identified in support of acquisition 

4) Acquisition does not displace decent housing or thriving business 

o All requirements met. In Westside District, advances URP for long standing vacant, 

flexible future use, no current use as the site is an abandoned and empty lot. 

CRITERIA - Property should meet at least one of the following criteria: 

1) Vacant or underutilized building OR property:  

(1) High vacancy, abandoned, vacant, low density, etc.  

o Abandoned former basketball court and grass lot. Not in use and in disrepair. 

(2) needs additional development, more density than allowed by existing zoning / land use code 

2) Site represents a catalyst for area/neighborhood if redeveloped in a certain fashion 

3) Surface Parking Lot Blighted property. Unused bare lot with basketball court.  

4) Underdeveloped property where improvement value is less than land value 

5) Property is part of a parcel assemblage to meet a long term goal: community project, affordable 

housing, placemaking, transit, etc. Potential exists. 

6) Highly Visible Location:  

(1) Corner lots, major roads, near major development, major employer, corridor, etc. 

(2) Corner lots can spur redevelopment or change the atmosphere of the block. 

7) The Acquisition would spur Economic Development  

(1) New business, (2) Job creation, (3) Creative economy 

8) Partnership Potential – Public or Private Potential Request for Proposal. 

9) Community Need – “ice rink” or place making effort (The Grove), Broad Street 

10)  Promotion of Transit Oriented Development 

11) Exceptionally low cost and/or low risk  

o Low purchase price of $34/SF. No existing structures. 

12) Protects the fabric of community (protects pedestrian experience, protects affordable or workforce housing, 

protects a community need, etc.)  

o Existing entitlement permits 8 of 17 units to be short term rentals or corporate leases. CCDC 

purchase would eliminate short term rentals or corporate lease component 

13) Property presents a unique barrier to conventional development:  

(1) Environmental cleanup needs (perceived or actual) 

o Geotechnical report – The soils on-site necessitate soil remediation (removal, replacement 

and stiffening) as report finds site predominantly is undocumented fill and unstable soil. 

(2) Land Owner who doesn’t develop  

o Current owner has walked away from development 

(3) Historic Preservation issues, concerns, requirements 

bshinn
Text Box
Attachment #6 - Property Acquisition Guidelines

bshinn
Text Box



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLANK PAGE 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: Resolution No. 1657 authorizing the Executive 
Director to submit a Cost Share Application to ACHD for certain 
Streetscape Elements and Fiber Optic Conduit on State Street 
between 8th Street and 14th Street 

Date: 
June 8, 2020 
 

Staff Contact: 
Matt Edmond 
 

Attachments: 
1) Resolution No. 1657 
2) Project Diagram 

Action Requested: Adopt Resolution No. 1657 authorizing Executive Director to submit a 
cost share application to ACHD for installation of certain streetscape elements and fiber optic 
conduit along State Street between 8th Street and 14th Street as part of ACHD Project No. 
519044. 

 
Background: 
 
ACHD is planning to resurface and/or reconstruct State Street from 1st Street to 16th Street as 
part of the Downtown Boise Implementation Plan (DBIP).  CCDC and City of Boise staff have 
been in discussions with ACHD staff since late 2019 on improvements subject to a cost share 
agreement that could be included with the project. After significant discussion, CCDC and City 
of Boise staff are in agreement that the following improvements are the most appropriate to 
include as part of the ACHD project: 
 

• Fiber-optic conduit bank and vault system on the south side of State between 8th Street 
and 14th Street 

• Suspended pavement systems (Silva cells) on both sides of State Street, as well as 
street trees, tree grates, irrigation, historic street lights and scored concrete furnishing 
zone from east of 12th Street to 14th Street 

 
CCDC has been planning on installing a fiber-optic conduit bank on State Street between 8th 
Street and 14th Street for a couple of years. This is part of the “western loop” CCDC has been 
working on with the City of Boise, which will eventually connect City Hall and west downtown to 
15th Street. The east end of this conduit bank will connect to a conduit bank on 8th Street to be 
constructed with the 8th & Bannock streetscape project to be built later this summer. The west 
end will eventually connect to the conduit bank on 15th Street between Front and Jefferson that 
CCDC constructed in 2019. Constructing the conduit bank on State Street as part of the ACHD 
project through a cost share agreement should realize cost savings by consolidating 
mobilization, traffic control, asphalt repair and other costs under a single contract.  
 
Installation of Silva cells and street trees on both sides of State Street between 12th and 14th will 
allow this section of State Street to retain and expand street trees in this section with the new 



Page 2 
 

5-lane configuration being built by ACHD. Currently, State Street goes from 5 lanes at 15th 
Street to 4 lanes at 14th Street and retains a 4-lane configuration until the State Capitol at 8th 
Street. The four lane configuration within the 80 foot wide right-of-way for the most part allows 
the placement of street trees inside a planting strip, although they are intermittent with 
significant gaps between 12th and 14th Streets. Part of the ACHD project scope for State Street 
includes adding a fifth lane between 12th and 14th Streets; this lane will allow construction of 
pedestrian refuge islands at 12th and 14th Streets and a center turn lane in between. 
Unfortunately, a 5-lane roadway within an 80 foot right-of-way leaves insufficient right-of-way 
behind the curb for street trees in a planting strip and detached sidewalk. Installing Silva cells, 
however, can facilitate placement of street trees along this section in a buffer zone as narrow as 
5 feet.  
 
Street trees, tree grates, irrigation, historic street lights, and scored concrete furnishing zone 
should be installed concurrently with the Silva cells to complete the streetscape and protect the 
Silva cells from being damaged. 
 
Under the proposed cost share agreement, ACHD would bid and contract for these 
improvements to be constructed as part of its roadwork project, and CCDC would reimburse 
ACHD for the improvements based on actual costs. 
 
Fiscal Notes 
 
Staff estimates the cost of design to be less than $100,000. Fiber-optic conduit bank between 
8th and 14th Streets is estimated at $450,000. The cost of installing Silva cells, street trees, tree 
grates, irrigation, historic street lights and scored concrete furnishing zone from east of 12th 
Street to 14th Street (approximately 5 block faces) is estimated to be approximately $1,050,000. 
The total construction costs, currently estimated at $1,500,000, would be reimbursed based on 
actual costs as determined by bid results and subsequent construction of the project. 
Construction is tentatively scheduled for 2022. 
 
Next Steps: 
 

• June 2020: CCDC submits cost share application 
• Late Summer 2020: 

o CCDC and ACHD execute Cost Share Permit for streetscape work 
o CCDC, ACHD & City of Boise execute Interagency Agreement for conduit work 

• Late 2020: Design complete, final engineer’s estimate available 
• August 2021: CCDC adopts FY2022 budget, including funding for this project 
• Winter 2021/2022: Project bidding and contract award 
• 2022: Substantial completion, ACHD invoices CCDC per terms of agreement 

 
Staff Recommendation: 
Adopt Resolution No. 1657. 
 
Suggested Motion: 

I move to adopt Resolution No. 1657 authorizing the Executive Director to submit a cost 
share application to ACHD for installation of certain streetscape elements and fiber optic 
conduit along State Street between 8th Street and 14th Street as part of ACHD Project 
No. 519044. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 1657  - 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 1657 
 
 
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, 
IDAHO:   
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN 
RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE AND SUBMIT A NON-BINDING COST 
SHARE APPLICATION TO THE ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT FOR 
SHARED CONSTRUCTION COSTS OF CERTAIN STREETSCAPE ELEMENTS 
AND FIBER OPTIC CONDUIT ON STATE STREET BETWEEN 8TH STREET AND 
14TH STREET, BOISE; DIRECTING THE AGENCY EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO 
NEGOTIATE A COST SHARE PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT AND 
THEREAFTER BRING THE AGREEMENT TO THE AGENCY BOARD FOR 
REVIEW AND ACTION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized under 
the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho 
Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, Chapter 29, 
Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively, the “Act”), as a duly created and functioning urban renewal 
agency for Boise City, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as the “Agency”). 
  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Boise City, Idaho (the “City”), after notice duly 
published, conducted a public hearing on the Westside Downtown Urban Renewal Plan (the 
“Westside Plan”), and following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 6108 on 
December 4, 2001, approving the Westside Plan and making certain findings; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Ada County Highway District (“ACHD”) has begun design work to 

resurface and reconstruct State Street from 1st Street to 16th Street as part of the Downtown Boise 
Implementation Plan; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency is planning for and budgeting to construct a fiber optic conduit 

bank and vault system, suspended pavement systems, street trees, tree grates, irrigation, and 
other streetscape improvements on State Street with the FY2022 budget, and the Agency 
understands that incorporating such improvements in a cost share agreement with ACHD should 
result in notable cost savings by consolidating mobilization, traffic control, asphalt repairs, and 
other construction costs; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency Board finds it in the best interests of the Agency and public to 

authorize the Agency Executive Director to execute the Cost Share Application and thereafter to 
negotiate a cost share participation agreement and bring the agreement to the Agency Board for 
review and action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, AS FOLLOWS:   
 
 Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1657  - 2 

 Section 2: That the non-binding Cost Share Application, a copy of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference, be and the same are hereby approved. 
 

Section 3: That the Agency Executive Director is authorized and directed to submit 
the non-binding Cost Share Application, attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, to the Ada 
County Highway District for the installation of certain streetscape elements and fiber optic conduit 
along State Street between 8th Street and 14th Street as part of ACHD Project No. 519044. 
 

Section 4: That the Agency Executive Director is directed to negotiate the Cost Share 
Participation Agreement and thereafter bring the Agreement back to the Agency Board for its 
review and action.  

 
Section 5:  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

adoption and approval.     
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on June 8, 

2020.  Signed by the Chair of the Agency Board of Commissioners and attested by the Secretary 
to the Agency Board of Commissioners on June 8, 2020.   
 
 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY 
 
 
      By:         
            Dana Zuckerman, Chair 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:        
      Lauren McLean, Secretary 



 

 

 
 
 

ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT 
PARTNERING AGENCY 

COST SHARE APPLICATION 
 
Important Notes:  
 

 Please refer to the Ada County Highway District Cost Share Ordinance No. 215, a copy of which 
is attached to this Cost Share Application.  Capitalized terms that are not defined in this Cost 
Share Application have the meanings given to them in the Cost Share Ordinance. 

 Applicants may submit attachments with this application with answers to questions requiring more 
space than is provided below. 

 No application shall be deemed to have been approved unless and until ACHD issues a Cost 
Share Permit. 

 Pursuant to the terms of the Cost Share Ordinance, ACHD will not approve any Cost Share 
Application that does not comply with the Cost Share Ordinance.  Additional reasons for denial 
include, but are in no way limited to, considerations of economics, the impact on project costs, 
availability of ACHD staff and resources, anticipated project schedules, availability of land 
acquisitions, noncompliance with any issued Cost Share Permits or other permits or applicable 
law and the authority of ACHD and/or the Partnering Agency, or other feasibility issues.  
Applications that are not submitted timely in relation to ACHD’s project schedule may be rejected. 

 
1. Applicant Name.  Name of Partnering Agency 

 
 
 
 
 

2. Partnering Agency Contact.  Name of individual at the Partnering Agency to whom all 
correspondence and notifications with regard to this Cost Share Application should be directed 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Date.  Date of Application 
 
 

 



 

 

4. Prior Applications.  If this Cost Share Application relates to the same ACHD Road Project that is 
the subject of a prior Cost Share Application(s), please indicate the date(s) of the prior 
applications and attach them with this Application. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
5. Notice of Interest.  If the Partnering Agency has previously provided ACHD with notice of its 

interest to include Non-Transportation Components in the ACHD Road Project, please 
summarize the contents of that notice (including date(s)) and any relevant discussions and 
correspondence with ACHD. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6. ACHD Road Project.  Identify the ACHD Road Project to which this Cost Share Application 
applies.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7. Proposed Non-Transportation Components.  Describe the Non-Transportation Component(s) the 

Partnering Agency proposes by this Application to include in the ACHD Road Project.  Include as 
much detail as is currently available regarding the design, location, and other information about 
the Non-Transportation Component(s).  If any design or concept plans or drawings are available, 
attach them to this Application. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
8. Authority.  Summarize the authority and jurisdiction of the Partnering Agency, under applicable 

state, federal, and/or local law, over the Non-Transportation Components. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
9. Design.  Identify the party (ACHD or the Partnering Agency, or both) that will be responsible for 

the design of the proposed Non-Transportation Components.  If both parties are responsible for 
part of the designs, please indicate, in detail, their respective responsibilities. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 

 
a. If ACHD is responsible for the design of all or a part of the proposed Non-
Transportation Components, provide information as to how and when the Partnering 
Agency will reimburse ACHD for those costs.  (Costs shall be detailed in Item 10 below.)   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
b. If the Partnering Agency is responsible for all or a part of the design of the 
proposed Non-Transportation Components, provide a deadline by which the Partnering 
Agency will submit the design to ACHD for approval: ___________ ___, 20__.  Also, by 
submitting this Application, the Partnering Agency certifies the following: 

 
i. All designs submitted by the Partnering Agency will comply with (i) 
established engineering standards, including the American Association of State 
Highway and Transportation Officials (“AASHTO”) guidelines, (ii) the Cost-Share 
Ordinance, (iii) all adopted ACHD rules, regulations, and policies, and (iv) all 
state and federal laws.  
 
ii. No designs shall be considered final until they are approved, in writing, 
by ACHD.   
 

10. Design Costs.  Pursuant to the Cost-Share Ordinance and applicable law, all Road Project design 
costs associated with the Non-Transportation Components are the responsibility of the Partnering 
Agency.  In addition, any redesign costs of Transportation Components of a Road Project that are 
necessitated by the incorporation of Non-Transportation Components in the Road Project shall be 
paid by the Partnering Agency.  In accordance with the foregoing, describe the applicable design 
costs and (if applicable) any redesign costs for which the Partnering Agency will be responsible.  
Include any credits applicable to the calculation. Also, if any federal funds are available for any 
Non-Transportation Components, please specify those funds and how they are to be allocated:     

 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
11. Construction.  Identify the party (ACHD or the Partnering Agency, or both) will be responsible for 

the construction of the proposed Non-Transportation Components.  If both parties are responsible 
for part of the construction, please indicate, in detail, their respective responsibilities. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

a. If ACHD is responsible for all or a part of the construction of the proposed Non-
Transportation Components, provide information as to how and when the Partnering 
Agency will reimburse ACHD for those costs.  (Costs shall be detailed in Item 12 below.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
b. By submitting this Application, the Partnering Agency certifies that the Partnering 
Agency will not allow any liens to attach to any right-of-way, improvements, or other 
property of ACHD as a result of any labor performed or materials supplied in connection 
with the construction of the Non-Transportation Components.   
 
 
By submitting this Application, the Partnering Agency certifies the following: 

 
i. The Partnering Agency shall be responsible for obtaining all permits 
required by ACHD in connection with any construction of the Non-Transportation 
Components.   
 
ii. The Partnering Agency will not allow any liens to attach to any right-of-
way, improvements, or other property of ACHD as a result of any labor 
performed or materials supplied in connection with the construction of the Non-
Transportation Components.   
 

12. Construction Costs.  Pursuant to the Cost-Share Ordinance and applicable law, all Road Project 
construction costs associated with the Non-Transportation Components are the responsibility of 
the Partnering Agency.  In addition, any reconstruction costs of Transportation Components of a 
Road Project that are necessitated by the incorporation of Non-Transportation Components in the 
Road Project must be paid by the Partnering Agency.  In accordance with the foregoing, describe 
the applicable construction costs and (if applicable) any reconstruction costs for which the 
Partnering Agency will be responsible , documenting any credits applicable to the calculation:    :     

 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13. Maintenance.  Pursuant to the Cost-Share Ordinance and applicable law, by submitting this 
application, the Partnering Agency hereby certifies that it will be solely responsible for perpetually 
replacing, maintaining, and caring for the Non-Transportation Components pursuant to the terms 
of the Cost Share Permit.    The Partnering Agency also certifies that if the Partnering Agency 
fails to replace, maintain, and care for the Non-Transportation Components, ACHD shall have the 
following remedies in addition to any other recovery in law or in equity, provided that ACHD first 
gives the Partnering Agency thirty (30) days notice and the Partnering Agency fails to remedy 
such failure:  (i) ACHD may revoke the Partnering Agency’s Cost Share Permit for the Non-
Transportation Components; (ii) ACHD may replace, maintain, and/or care for the Non-
Transportation Components and the Partnering Agency shall reimburse ACHD fully for all 
associated costs; (iii) ACHD may remove, alter, redesign, or in the case of landscaping, 
Hardscape over the Non-Transportation Components, and the Partnering Agency shall reimburse 
ACHD fully for all associated costs, and (iv) ACHD may refuse to issue any further Cost Share 
Permits or any other permits for future ACHD Road Projects until the Partnering Agency complies 
with the conditions of the Cost Share Permit.  In addition, in the event of an emergency caused by 
the Partnering Agency’s failure to perform required maintenance, ACHD may immediately 
perform any and all emergency repairs or take other measures in connection with an emergency, 
and the Partnering Agency shall reimburse ACHD fully for all associated costs. 

 
14. Acquisition of Real Property.  Specify any real property that must be acquired to accommodate 

the inclusion of the Non-Transportation Components into the Road Project, and indicate how and 
when the Partnering Agency will acquire, pay for, or dedicate such real property.  If the Partnering 
Agency is responsible for obtaining the real property, also indicate whether the real property will 
be deeded and/or dedicated to ACHD in connection with the Road Project.  Please attach all 
relevant legal descriptions to this application, if available, or, if not available, a complete 
description and/or depiction of the real property. 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15. Relocation of Utilities.  Pursuant to the Cost-Share Ordinance and applicable law, by submitting 
this Application, the Partnering Agency hereby certifies that it will be solely responsible for the 
relocation, or the cost of the relocation, of any utilities required in connection with the placement, 
incorporation, or construction of the Non-Transportation Components. Describe the utilities that 
will or may need to be relocated in connection with the Road Project,  Also, identify which party 
(ACHD or the Partnering Agency) will be responsible to relocate the utilities:  (Please note that 
ACHD may require, as a condition of issuing any Cost-Share Permit, that the Partnering Agency 
shall be responsible for the relocation of any utilities.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16. Effect on Stormwater Quality.  Pursuant to the Cost-Share Ordinance and applicable law, by 
submitting this Application, the Partnering Agency hereby certifies that upon a determination by 
ACHD that the incorporation into the Road Project of the Partnering Agency’s Non-Transportation 
Component(s) will have an adverse affect on stormwater quantity or quality, Partnering Agency 
shall be solely responsible for either mitigating or funding the mitigation of any such adverse 
effected in a means determined by or acceptable to ACHD.   

 
17. Additional Certifications by Partnering Agency.  By submitting this Cost Share Application, and 

upon its approval by ACHD, the Partnering Agency hereby certifies and agrees as follows: 
 

a. Indemnification.  The Partnering Agency will protect, defend, indemnify, and hold  ACHD 
and its officers, directors, employees, members, and agents harmless from and against any 
and all liability, suits, losses, damages, claims, actions, costs, and expenses of any nature, 
including court costs and attorney fees, arising from or out of any acts or omissions of the 
Partnering Agency, its agents, or contractors related to or in connection with the Non-
Transportation Components, the representations and certifications set forth in this Cost 
Share Application, the terms of any issued and accepted Cost Share Permit, and the 
exercise of any privileges or performance of any obligations by the Partnering Agency upon 
the grant of approval of this application by ACHD. 

 
b. Costs/Expenses.  In the event of a Partnering Agency’s failure to comply with the terms and 

certifications made in this Cost Share Application or any issued and accepted Cost Share 
Permit, the Partnering Agency shall be solely responsible for all costs, damages, expenses, 
including, without limitation, all attorney fees, incurred by ACHD. 

 
c. Compliance with Law.  In the event that any part of the obligations of the Partnering Agency 

or of ACHD in connection with the Road Project are determined to be illegal or 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining obligations of the 
Partnering Agency set forth in this Cost Share Application shall still be applicable. 
 

d. Adherence to Project Schedule.  ACHD will, pursuant to the terms of any issued Cost 
Share Permit, provide a schedule for completion of the Non-Transportation Components.  
To the extent that the Partnering Agency is responsible for all or any part of the 
construction of the Non-Transportation Components, the Partnering Agency agrees to 
comply with the schedule set forth in the Cost Share Permit. 
 

e. Revocation of Rights by ACHD. ACHD shall at all times have the right to (i) maintain, 
relocate, reconstruct, remove, or redesign any and all improvements that are part of the 
Road Project, in which case the Partnering Agency shall reimburse ACHD fully for all 
associated costs; (ii) revoke any Cost Share Permit granted to the Partnering Agency to 
access any Highway or Public Right-of-Way; and (iii) immediately perform any and all 
emergency repairs or take other measures in connection with an emergency, in which 
case, the Partnering Agency shall reimburse ACHD fully for all associated costs.  ACHD 
shall use best efforts to provide the Partnering Agency with advance notice before taking 
any of these steps.  

 
 



 

 

 
 
Signature/Certification of Applicant 
 
The person signing below represents that he or she has the authority on behalf of the Partnering 
Agency to submit this Application and bind the Partnering Agency to the representations and 
certifications set forth herein. 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Name: _______________________________________ 
Position: _____________________________________ 
Date: ________________________________________ 

 
 

 
5250481_1.DOC 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLANK PAGE 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

V.  
INFORMATION  

ITEMS 
 
  



Page 1 of 16 

 

 

DATE:  June 8, 2020   

TO:  Dana Zuckerman, Chair  

Board of Commissioners 

FM:  John Brunelle, Executive Director 

RE:  CCDC Monthly Report 

IDAHO REBOUNDS - CCDC ASSISTS  Staff remains focused on assisting the economic 
recovery within and adjacent to the boundaries of our urban renewal districts – which are 
sometimes referred to a "urban resilience districts" during discussions with our partners.   

 The first bold step was to allow our monthly parking customers to skip April and May fees, 
freeing up approximately $650,000 for the urgent needs of individuals and businesses. 

 CCDC's enhanced support of Boise’s business accelerator, Trailhead, demonstrates the 
Agency’s continued commitment to Actuate Boise as it creates new companies and jobs 
in the city.   

 Next up: Economic Recovery Teamwork.  Thanks to a collaborative private / public effort, 
restaurant operators are reopening and expanding outdoor dining in the heart of the 
downtown.  CCDC is proud to assist business owners who have invested in downtown, 
this time in partnership with the Downtown Boise Association.  Hats off to CCDC 
commissioners and staff past and present for the design and curation of the two 8th Street 
blocks over the past 30-plus years.  The Agency's forward-thinking layout of public areas 
and unique-to-Boise sidewalk dining standards for restaurateurs set the stage for a 
smooth closure this past week by the Mayor, City Council, and City personnel.  Our 
financial support to the DBA will come primarily from ParkBOI revenue.  Here's some early 
feedback regarding CCDC's economic recovery assistance:  

THANK YOU. I don’t even know if I can express how appreciative I am. I wish I 
could capture the cheers and relief I see in business owners when I tell them that 
we have a solid, executable way to help them recover quicker AND that costs are 
covered. Just today I got a little jump up-and-down cheer from the owner of [a local 
brewery]. Thank you on behalf of dozens of downtowners. 

Other rebound/assist projects are underway, including property acquisition and new development 
partnerships, as CCDC maximizes the effectiveness of its unique tools to stimulate economic 
activity during these challenging times.   

CCDC INVESTMENT IN PUBLIC OUTREACH & COMMUNICATIONS   The Agency's expanded 
commitment to public outreach and stakeholder communications is, as expected, paying big 
dividends. Our public infrastructure improvement projects in our River-Myrtle / Old Boise District 
are nearing completion and serve as a prototype for timely communication with key stakeholders.  
Area property owners and business operators, as well as the motoring and bike/ped public, were 
kept up-to-date prior to and during construction. Special thanks to local media outlets for providing 
details and timely reporting to help spread the word of the disruptions while we all work together 



Page 2 of 16 

to redevelop areas of our town.  Shout out to staffers Karl Woods, Jordyn Neerdaels, and Sarah 
Jones along with consultants Red Sky and Agnew Beck. Also thanks to city engagement staff for 
collaborating on the multiple projects currently underway. 

RIVER – MYRTLE / OLD BOISE DISTRICT 

 

 

Economic Development 

5th & Front Streets - Hotel and Parking Garage – Participation Program (PP) Type 3, 5:  The 
parking garage portion of this project (540 total spaces) received a temporary certificate of 
occupancy in mid-March allowing it to open to customers. CCDC began leasing 200 spaces for 
public use starting on May 1, 2020. All 200 spaces are reserved for monthly parkers. The hotel 
portion of the development is scheduled to open Summer 2020. The developer is planning a 
public art element on the stairwell wall facing Front Street, and is working with the City of Boise 
Arts and History Department on the selection process. The CCDC Board approved an additional 
$90,000 in eligible expenses for public art at its December 2019 meeting. The selection committee 
will include a representative from CCDC, the development group, an Arts & History commissioner 
and local artists. The selection committee is planning to discuss artist applications this month.   

500 S. 8th Street - Trailhead - Agency Leased Property:  The Board approved a new two-year 
lease at its May 18, 2020 public meeting. 

200 Myrtle Street - Boise Caddis - PP Type 2:  Construction continues on the Boise Caddis 
project with post-tensioned concrete work underway. Wood framing is expected to begin this 
month. Apartment facade finishes will start in early August. The project is scheduled to open in 
the summer of 2021. The project includes 160 rental units and 400 parking spaces. Ada County 
will purchase a certain number of the parking spaces for use by its nearby Courthouse complex 
workforce. The Type 2 Agreement includes approximately $1.2 million in eligible expenses for 
public improvements on 2nd, 3rd, and Myrtle Streets and a small portion of Broad Street. 
Reimbursement will come from tax increment revenue generated by the project.   



Page 3 of 16 

204 Myrtle Street - CDG Boise - PP Type 2: The Board designated this project for Type 2 funding 
at its November 2019 meeting. CDG Boise is building a 249-unit apartment building with 353 
parking spaces, and has requested reimbursement for approximately $980,000 of public 
improvements including streetscapes and utility work. The Type 2 Agreement was approved at 
the December 2019 Board meeting. Construction is scheduled to begin at a later date. 

406 Broad Street - Cartee Apartments - PP Type 2:  
Construction and mobilization began in October 2019. 
Excavation, footings, and first floor columns are complete. 
Currently concrete work is being performed on the first floor 
slab and garage ramp. The agreement between CCDC and 
the developer contemplates approximately $1.3 million in 
eligible expenses to be reimbursed from project-generated tax 
increment revenue. The project includes approximately 160 
apartment units and 176 structured parking spaces.  
512 W Grove Street - 5th & Grove Mixed Use Residential - 
PP Type 2:  At its March 2020 meeting, the CCDC Board 
approved a Type 2 General Assistance Participation 
Agreement with 5th and Grove Investors, LLC. The project 
includes 114 for-rent apartments and 8,000 square feet of 
ground floor retail. Fifty of the apartment units will be 
dedicated to workforce housing, serving 120% AMI (area 
median income) and below. The project qualifies for Level A 
status and is eligible to receive 80% of the tax increment 
revenue it generates to reimburse Eligible Expenses. The 
project includes approximately $1 million in Eligible Expenses 
for public improvements along 5th Street, Grove Street and 
alley. It is estimated that tax increment revenue can reimburse 
approximately $700,000 of Eligible Expenses. CCDC will 
construct and pay for the already-planned Grove Street 
streetscape improvements currently in the Agency’s 5-year 
Capital Improvement Plan, accounting for approximately 
$347,000 in Eligible Expenses. If construction timelines do not 
align, CCDC will reimburse the developer for that work upon 
completion of the project and not through project-generated 
tax increment revenue. Those two sources will reimburse the 
developer for all of the project’s Eligible Expenses. 
Construction is scheduled to begin Summer 2020.  

116 6th Street - 6th & Grove Mixed Used, Income Restricted Residential - PP Type 2: At its 
March 2020 meeting, the CCDC Board approved a Type 2 General Assistance Participation 
Agreement with the developers of the 6th & Grove project. This is a mixed-use residential and 
retail project being developed by Capital Partners, Galena Fund, and deChase Miksis. It will be 
comprised of 60 apartment units (income restricted and market rate), 5,000 square feet of retail 
and 9,000 square feet of office space. The project includes approximately $600,000 of Eligible 
Expenses for public improvements in the alley and streetscapes along Grove and 6th streets. 
CCDC will construct and pay for the already-planned Grove Street streetscape improvements 
currently in the Agency’s 5-year Capital Improvement Plan, accounting for approximately 
$130,000 in Eligible Expenses. Sixth Street improvements are included in CCDC’s current year 
CIP and will be reimbursed upon completion. The remainder of the Eligible Expenses will be 
reimbursed using tax increment revenue generated by the project between 2022 and 2025. These 
funding sources will reimburse the developer for all of their project’s Eligible Expenses. 
Construction is scheduled to begin in the summer of 2020.  

Type 1: One-time assistance. 
Reimbursements up to $200k 
for eligible expenses. 
Developer-matched. 

Type 2: General assistance. 
Reimbursed by project-
generated tax increment 
revenue. Scorecard 
dependent.  

Type 3: Transformative 
Assistance. Large-scale or 
unproven projects. Often 
includes public parking. $6 
private to $1 public minimum 
investment required.  

Type 4: Capital Improvement 
Coordination. Most often 
used for public/public 
projects. 

Type 5: Disposition of CCDC-
owned property. 

PARTICIPATION 
PROGRAM 



Page 4 of 16 

600 Front Street - The Vanguard - PP Type 2: Visium Development has begun construction of 
a 75-unit multi-family apartment building on the corner of 6th and Front streets (formerly home to 
Biz Print). The CCDC Board designated this project for Type 2 funding at its November 2019 
meeting. Visium has requested reimbursement funds for approximately $400,000 of public 
improvements, including streetscapes and utility work. The Type 2 Agreement has been finalized 
and was approved at the December 2019 Board meeting. 

Infrastructure 

535 S. 15th Street - River Street Lofts - PP Type 1: Townhome Lofts received its Certificate of 
Occupancy, the developer has submitted and CCDC has reviewed its cost documentation items 
for reimbursement. Eligible Expenses greater than $150,000 have been approved. Per the Type 
1 Streetscapes program, CCDC issued a $150,000 reimbursement for the project.  

N. 6th Street Streetscape - Front Street to Main Street:  Design and construction of streetscape 
improvements on 6th Street between Main and Front streets. The Land Group is the design 
professional. The construction contract was awarded to Guho Corp at the Board’s August 2019 
meeting. Guho Corp is currently working on streetscapes on the west side of 6th Street between 
Main and Front streets. The project is ahead of schedule due to the coronavirus related 
cancellation of the annual Treefort indie music festival. Reconstruction of the 6th and Grove 
intersection requires a full street closure. This closure was moved up to April 2020 from June 
2020 to take advantage of the pandemic-caused low traffic volumes. The project is substantially 
complete and the walk through was performed on June 4. 

RMOB - Consolidated Newspaper Racks: The Agency is assisting the City of Boise in locating 
and installing consolidated news racks downtown to ensure sidewalk accessibility, reduce clutter 
and damage to individual racks. Guho Corp has completed all but two of the planned installations, 
both located in the Westside District. The City Council approved the news rack ordinance on May 
5, 2020. The old boxes will be removed and publications moved into the new racks. 

Mobility 

S. 5th St & Myrtle St - Signalized Crossing:  This project seeks to install signal control on Myrtle 
Street at the 5th Street intersection to provide a safe crossing between Julia Davis Park and the 
Central Addition, and to extend the signal-coordinated calming of Myrtle Street. Kittelson & 
Associates has completed a preliminary warrant analysis and representatives of ACHD, City of 
Boise, CCDC, and ITD met on March 12, 2020 to discuss next steps. CCDC and the City are 
working on a request to ITD outlining the rationale for a signal and how it will not set a precedent. 
ParkBOI - Capitol & Myrtle Parking Garage - Agency Owned Property:  CCDC has contracted 
with Specialty Systems of Utah to repair patches of spray-on fire-proofing in this garage. 
Temperatures of at least 40 degrees are required throughout the application process. The work 
has a tentative start date of June 22, weather and COVID-19 restrictions permitting. 

ParkBOI - 11th & Front Parking Garage - Agency Owned Property:  No significant 
maintenance performed in recent months.  Fewer than 100 of the 722 spaces that were originally 
available for general public monthly use remain available for lease.   
N. 5th & 6th Streets - City of Boise/ACHD Traffic Configuration:  ACHD has this project on 
indefinite hold until there is programmed construction funding. The Agency stands ready to assist 
and anticipates direction in the near future. 

 

 



Page 5 of 16 

Place Making 

Grove Street - Multi-Block Improvement Project:  The Old Boise Blocks on Grove Street, 
between 3rd and 5th Streets downtown, is ready for a catalytic transformation. With a few nearby 
projects already underway, CCDC is kicking off an inclusive community-driven visioning process 
to develop a placemaking strategy for the Old Boise Blocks on Grove Street. The process is just 
getting started and begins in June with creating a series of stakeholder visioning meetings to 
create a community-supported vision for the area. The public will have several opportunities to 
engage in the visioning process through summer and fall 2020. The first group stakeholder 
visioning meeting is scheduled for June 11.    

Special Projects 

RMOB Public Art - City of Boise Broad Street Sculpture - PP Type 4:  Final concepts have 
been submitted. The City Department of Arts & History is currently gathering feedback on the 
concepts with a review scheduled for June 4. 

WESTSIDE DISTRICT 

 

Economic Development 

1010 W. Jefferson St - 10Ten Building - Agency-Owned Property:  No notable maintenance 
issues.  
421 N. 10th St - ISG/BSN Building - Agency Owned Property:  No notable maintenance issues.   

11th Street Streetscape - Washington Street to Grove Street:  These streetscape 
improvements are planned for construction in FY2023. To maximize public investment, the 
Agency is working closely with ACHD on its 11th Street bikeway facilities project. To ensure that 
cooperative and coordinated solutions are developed by ACHD and the Agency in their respective 
planning processes, CCDC is conducting planning and design on a similar schedule to ACHD. 



Page 6 of 16 

1111 Idaho St - 11th & Idaho Building - PP Type 2:  This nine-story, Class A office building is 
being developed by Rafanelli and Nahas using the internationally recognized architecture firm 
Perkins + Will. The site is adjacent to the future Westside Urban Park and is being designed to 
complement the existing Boise Plaza office building on the adjacent block to the north. The 
development was designated as a Type 2 Participation Project in July 2019. The final agreement 
was presented to the Board in August 2019. Construction is underway. CCDC will reimburse the 
developers for public improvements being completed along Idaho and 11th streets. The 
reimbursement will be based on actual expenses and will not exceed $740,690. 

1015 W Main Street - 11th and Main Apartments - PP Type 1: Seattle’s Revolve Development 
is seeking Designation for a Type 1 project at the June 8, 2020 Board meeting. Revolve has 
purchased part of the former Safari Inn, located at 1015 W. Main Street. Revolve is redeveloping 
the 11th and Main building, transforming it from a 43-room hotel into 41 residential apartments, 
mostly studio units. Additionally, a teak-wood lattice façade will be added onto the existing stucco 
exterior walls. The development seeks reimbursement for replacing the 11th Street alley drive-
ramp. The reimbursement will be based on actual expenses and will not exceed $23,000 pending 
final confirmed work scope. 

Infrastructure 

Westside District - Consolidated Newspaper Racks:  The Agency is assisting the City of Boise 
in locating and installing consolidated news racks downtown to ensure sidewalk accessibility, 
reduce clutter and damage to individual racks. Guho Corp has completed all but two of the 
planned installations: on Bannock Street between 12th and 13th streets due to the closure of the 
former Greyhound bus terminal; on 10th Street between Main and Idaho streets due to business 
concerns and questions over whether the unregulated boxes there are still in use. The City 
Council approved a news rack ordinance on May 5, 2020. The old boxes will be removed and 
publications moved into the new racks. 

Bannock Street Streetscape - 8th to 9th Streets:  The City of Boise conducted a public meeting 
and an online survey to gauge public support of the proposed design. Feedback was evaluated. 
The City presented the project to ACHD during a Commission work session in November 2019 
and to the ACHD Commission in January 2020 after which ACHD approved the design. The 
project received Design Review approval from the City in February 2020. The CCDC Board 
approved the contract for construction documents and construction administration services with 
Jensen Belts Associates and the ranking for CM/GC services in March 2020. The CM/GC contract 
with Guho Corp has been signed.  The Agency is working to accelerate project timeline to 
complete construction in 2020.  Construction document production is on schedule to seek 
permits in June.   
10th & State Streets - Agency Owned Property:  CCDC is working with nearby landowners 
around the Agency-owned sites to create transformative development in the Brady Block area. 
CCDC hopes to incentivize the future redevelopment of underutilized sites adjacent to the Brady 
Block. 

1010 Main St - Avery Building - PP Type:  This privately-owned vacant building is currently 
undergoing renovation. CCDC has remained engaged with the developer and owner who is 
working on overall project financing. The developer is interested in utilizing the Agency’s 
Participation Program for historic preservation costs and anticipates submitting an application in 
2020. 

State Street Streetscape & Fiber-Optic Conduit: The Agency is negotiating a cost share 
agreement with ACHD to include improvements on State Street as part of a road project 
tentatively scheduled for 2022. Agency-funded improvements would include installation of fiber-
optic conduit bank on State between 8th and 14th, and construction of streetscape improvements 



Page 7 of 16 

to include street trees, Silva cells, and historic street lights from east of 12th to 14th. The Silva 
cells would serve a dual purpose of accommodating healthy street trees and managing 
stormwater from State Street (ACHD will credit CCDC for stormwater costs). The cost share 
application is on the June 8 Board agenda. 

Westside URD - Boundary Adjustment:  The Agency is working to adjust the Westside URD 
boundary to add an additional 14 acres that includes the Boise High School campus, the 
downtown YMCA property, as well as right of way on Franklin Street and 8th Street. The City 
Council accepted an eligibility report in June 2019 and directed CCDC to move forward with 
amending the plan. The Plan Amendment must be reviewed by CCDC and the City Council as 
well as Planning and Zoning prior to adoption. The Agency and counsel are working on scoping 
the plan amendment and are discussing potential projects with property owners.   

Mobility 

ParkBOI - 10th & Front Garage - Agency Owned Property:  The Agency hired DESMAN to 
perform design services for structural damage prevention in the 10th & Front parking garage per 
a consultant ranking approved by the Board in January 2020. DESMAN is working on construction 
documents and expects to have them complete by the end of May. The Agency plans to pre-
qualify contractors late this summer, bid the project late fall, and award for a Spring 2021 
construction start. 

North 8th Street - City/ACHD Traffic Configuration:  A traffic and bike lane analysis performed 
by Kittleson & Associates and a design package by Jensen Belts Associates were presented to 
the City Council in January 2019. The City Council requested public outreach on the project. The 
City conducted a public meeting and an online survey to gauge public support of the proposed 
design. Feedback was evaluated. The City presented the project to ACHD’s Commission during 
a November 2019 work session. The Commission was receptive and asked for an interagency 
agreement for paving and for the project to be brought back for formal presentation. That 
presentation occurred in January 2020 after which ACHD approved the design. The project 
received Design Review approval from the City in February 2020. The CCDC Board approved 
contract for construction documents and construction administration services with Jensen Belts 
Associates in March 2020. CCDC is working to accelerate project timeline to complete 
construction in 2020. Construction Document production is on schedule to seek permits in June. 

Place Making 

11th Street & Bannock Street - Westside Urban Park:  The City Council approved the Westside 
Urban Park Master Development Agreement and associated land agreement in June 2019. The 
completion of these agreements formalizes a public-private partnership that will result in the 
creation of a new downtown neighborhood urban park. This public investment complements 
construction of the adjacent 11th and Idaho development, a nine-story Class A office building with 
retail/restaurant space fronting the park. Construction on the office tower began in August 2019 
and is expected to be complete in November 2020. Construction of the park is planned to begin 
in February 2021 with ribbon cutting estimated in September 2021. CCDC has convened a 
community naming committee to generate potential names for the park. Recommended name(s) 
will then be submitted to the Parks & Recreation Commission for review.  Artist Matthew Mazzotta 
presented art concepts to the project stakeholder group on June 1, 2020 and will be making small 
refinements on the two preferred concepts prior to Arts & History putting the concepts out for 
public comment. 

 



Page 8 of 16 

30TH STREET DISTRICT 

 

Economic Development 

2403 Fairview Ave - Adare Manor - PP Type 2, 4:  Northwest Integrity Housing Company’s 
affordable housing development, consisting of 134 apartments, is complete and actively leasing 
units. The combined participation agreement is for approximately $730,000 for public 
improvements adjacent to the development including streetscapes and utility work. This 
development is on ground leased from the City of Boise for forty years and was awarded to the 
developer through a competitive process. The majority of the apartments will be for families 
earning less than 60% AMI (area median income) – about $44,000 per year for a family of four – 
with approximately 10% of the units offered at market rate. CCDC is working with developers on 
the cost documentation to process the reimbursement for public improvements. The developer is 
gathering its cost documentation for the Type 4 component of the project and will provide the 
Type 2 cost documentation when it has all of the information available. 

Infrastructure 

301 29th St - Whittier Elementary School - PP Type 4:  CCDC conducted an on-site inspection 
and reviewed and approved all cost documentation required for reimbursement for Eligible 
Expenses per the Type 4 Agreement. Boise School District has been reimbursed $540,000 for 
expenses related to streetscapes, utilities, road reconstruction, and a public plaza space. 

Mobility 

Main and Fairview Transit Stations and Platforms:  CCDC, in cooperation with the City of 
Boise and Valley Regional Transit, is redesigning and constructing improvements, at up to seven 
bus stops, along Main St. and Fairview Ave. between Whitewater Park Blvd. and N 16th St.  



Page 9 of 16 

CCDC is contracting with HDR Engineering to provide design services which will be completed in 
spring 2021 with construction to follow in summer 2021. 

Place Making 

30th Street District - Urban Renewal Plan Amendment:  In the event Agency funding is 
involved in the development of a sports park or related infrastructure, and it is located in the 30th 
Street District, it is likely that an amendment to the 30th Street Urban Renewal Plan would become 
necessary.  

SHORELINE  

 

Economic Development 

Shoreline District - Downtown Boise Streetscape Standards Update:  CCDC, in collaboration 
with the City, is preparing to update the Downtown Boise Streetscape Standards Manual. These 
standards provide guidance to private development and Agency’s Capital Improvement Plan 
projects for streetscape improvements in the public rights-of-way within the downtown Urban 
Renewal Districts. 

The standards currently in effect were adopted by the City in 2015 and do not include the 
Shoreline District project area. This update will incorporate that project area as well as the 
innovative stormwater management strategies outlined in the City’s Lusk Street Neighborhood 
Master Plan and River Street Neighborhood Master Plan.   

The update will be reviewed by neighborhood stakeholders, the City, and ACHD before being 
considered for formal approval. Once approved by the CCDC Board, the updated standards will 
be forwarded to the City Council and recommended for final approval and adoption into Blueprint 
Boise. This collaborative process will begin once Agency funds are allocated to the project to pay 
for the necessary consultant services. 



Page 10 of 16 

GATEWAY EAST 

 

Economic Development 

9100 S Eisenman Road – PP Type 2: 9100 S. Eisenman Road project by R.L.R. Investments, 
LLC received a Type 2 designation at the Board’s April 13, 2020 meeting and is seeking Board 
approval for its Type 2 Agreement at the June 8th, 2020 Board meeting. R.L.R. Investments, LLC 
is a national freight logistics company.  This project will host a new regional industrial mixed-use 
facility and be a regional hub for R.L.R. Investments, LLC national operations. It is located near 
the existing Winco distribution center on a 13.47-acre lot. The project will house three structures: 
a 5,000 SF office joined to a 60,000 SF freight terminal, and a 9,000 SF maintenance shop. The 
project will also renovate the existing, dilapidated fueling canopy. Seventy parking spaces and a 
private green space constitute the rest of the property’s development. Over 130 construction jobs 
will be created by this project.  Estimate total cost is $9.8 million. The project anticipates $385,000 
of Eligible Expenses to be paid over the standard Gateway District six-year term.  Estimated 
completion is summer 2021 and then fully on the tax roll by calendar year 2022. The project will 
generate roughly $80,000 in added tax increment per year. 

9025 S Federal Way - PP Type 2: 9025 S. Federal Way is an 11,000 square foot mixed-use 
office and industrial project consisting of three office suites and two warehouse bays on a 1.4-
acre lot located on the west side of Federal Way across from the Micron campus. The Board 
approved a Type 2 participation agreement for approximately $94,000 of Eligible Expenses on 
the $2.1 million project at its January 2020 meeting.  

9605 S Eisenman Road – Boise Gateway 1 - PP Type 2: Boise Gateway 1 is a 168,000 square 
foot industrial building project with related site improvements located at the southwest corner of 
Eisenman Road and Freight Street. This is the first project/phase of the 140-acre Boise Gateway 
Industrial Park, on land owned by the City of Boise and ground leased to the Boyer Company for 



Page 11 of 16 

development. Upon completion in mid-2020, the majority of the building will be leased by Verde 
Fulfillment, a third party logistics and e-retailer fulfillment center with clients around the world. 
Total project value is estimated to be $13 million, with an estimated $425,000 of Eligible 
Expenses. The project was designated for Type 2 assistance at the November 2019 Board 
meeting.  The Board approved a Type 2 participation agreement for approximately $426,000 of 
Eligible Expenses on the $12.7 million project at its April 2020 meeting.  The project is expected 
to be completed in July 2020. 

Mobility 

Gowen Road - ACHD Cost Share - PP Type 4:  ACHD will replace the Gowen Road bridge over 
the railroad right-of-way including widening the bridge to accommodate bike lanes and sidewalks. 
ACHD and the Agency executed the pathway cost share/participation agreement in May 2019. 
Since then, ACHD has advanced construction from 2022 to 2021, and City of Boise has requested 
that gravel shoulders on the bridge approaches be replaced with wider sidewalk; necessitating 
amendment of the original agreement. The Agency, City of Boise, and ACHD have also agreed 
to terms for a proposed Interagency Agreement to install fiber-optic conduit along Gowen as part 
of the project. The total of both cost share agreements is estimated to be approximately $360,000 
per the engineer’s estimate based on the 99% plans.  The CCDC Board approved the amended 
cost share agreement and the interagency agreement at its May 18, 2020 Board meeting. 

Gateway East Transportation Study: The Agency contracted HDR to perform a transportation 
study of the Gateway East District to determine the necessary number of lanes on major roads, 
optimal secondary access points, and recommended traffic control. HDR has completed the 
technical report with significant input from the project team, which included representatives from 
the Agency, City and ACHD. Agency staff will present the findings to the CCDC Board next month. 
It will then be submitted to ACHD for consideration in the ACHD Master Street Map. 

Infrastructure 

Production Street and Gowen Road Utilities: This project will install new fiber optic conduit 
banks and associated vaults along Production Street and Gowen Road for the city to enhance 
data connectivity within city limits. CCDC is contracting with Civil Survey Consultants to provide 
design services which will be completed in FY2020 with construction to follow in FY2021. Concept 
design is currently under review by CCDC and the City of Boise IT department. 

AGENCY WIDE – ALL DISTRICTS 
 

Economic Development 

ParkBOI - Parking Rates - Annual Review:  At its April 2020 meeting the CCDC Board 
suspended consideration of adjusting parking rates until FY2021 at the earliest.  

City of Boise Park & Ride Shuttle:  The City made the decision to terminate this service in April 
2020. Ridership was low and VRT has increased its Vista shuttle service to 15 minute headways. 
The search for a west end Park & Ride service has been suspended for the time being. 

ParkBOI - All Garages - Cleaning: during the months of April and May a concerted effort was 
made to enhance the appearance of all garages. This included scrubbing the walking surfaces of 
all stairwells and elevator lobbies, repainting handrails and step edges, washing windows inside 
and out and touch up painting wherever needed.   



Page 12 of 16 

ParkBOI - New Product - Nighttime Monthly: As part of the parking rate discussion at the March 
2020 meeting, the Agency recommended that the 10th & Front Garage be designated to 
accommodate proposed nighttime-monthly parking pass-holders, making it available to these 
parkers as early as 3 pm – an attractive alternative to a regular monthly pass. 

ParkBOI - New Product - Carpool Priority: Staff is working to enhance this product to make it 
more attractive to customers.   

CityGO: Formerly known as the Downtown Mobility Collaborative, the downtown’s Transportation 
Management Association is up and running. This partnership of VRT, City of Boise, ACHD 
Commuteride, BSU, St Luke’s, the DBA and CCDC, is aggressively marketing its products and 
services to the downtown community. An excellent overview can be found at citygoboise.com.  
The Board will receive a City Go presentation in the near future. 

ParkBOI - 9th & Main Parking Garage - Elevators:  The Agency is working with Hummel 
Architects for the design, construction documents and construction administration for the 
modernization of the two elevators in the 9th and Main Garage. The project was advertised in the 
Idaho Statesman on January 30 and February 6, 2020.  Two bids were received. The project was 
awarded to Schindler Elevator at the Board’s March 2020 meeting and a Notice to Proceed was 
issued later that month. Parts are to be shipped in July and work is to begin mid-August 2020.   

ParkBOI - Capitol & Front Parking Garage - Agency Owned Property:  At its December 2019 
meeting the Board reviewed a Purchase and Sale Agreement for this parking garage with Block 
22, LLC for the purchase price of $4,000,000. CCDC is working with Block 22 on due diligence 
and a transition plan. In order to accommodate a smooth transition with Block 22, CCDC has 
extended the closing date to June 30, 2020. After purchase, and for the time being, Block 22 
intends to operate the garage consistent with current practice.  

ParkBOI - Capitol & Main Parking Garage - Elevators:  This project will modernize the existing 
elevators in the Capitol & Main Garage to provide new finishes and amenities, improve efficiency 
and reliability, and bring them into compliance with current codes. Schindler began work on the 
Idaho Street elevator in January 2020 with a planned completion date on that elevator at the end 
of that month. However, Schindler discovered damage to the stile on the side of the elevator car 
that requires the replacement of the full sling and platform assembly for safety reasons. The new 
sling and platform assembly is expected to ship in May 2020. In order to minimize project delays 
and take advantage of low garage use due to COVID-19, Agency worked with Schindler to begin 
work on the Main Street elevator in April. The Main Street elevator is expected to be back in 
service in mid-June.  

ParkBOI - 9th & Front Parking Garage - Agency Owned Property:  The Agency contracted for 
small areas of waterproofing membrane repairs and additional concrete repairs in the garage. 
The spall repair is complete.  The contractor will resume the membrane repair possibly June 12. 
The Aspen Lofts property manager has been contacted to coordinate the work dates. With no 
weather delays the membrane will be done by July 5. The Agency executed a contract with 
Slichter Ugrin Architects to provide design services for Stair Tower Structural Repairs in March 
2020. Construction documents are expected to be complete in late spring 2020. Due to the 
construction schedule running into the winter months as projected by the current course, the 
Request for Qualifications issued in April was cancelled. The Agency will re-issue in late 
summer/early fall for a spring 2021 construction start date.   

ParkBOI - Door Hardware & ADA Upgrades:  Slichter Ugrin Architects have been hired as the 
design professional to develop plans and specifications for this project.  Hellman Construction 
Company, Inc., was the responsive low bidder and is under contract. A Notice to Proceed will be 
issued once material procurement timelines are solidified. 

 



Page 13 of 16 

Mobility 

11th Street Bikeway - ACHD Collaboration - River Street to Washington Street:  11th Street 
has been identified in plans by the City and ACHD as an important corridor for the west side of 
downtown Boise. It prioritizes cyclists, pedestrians, retail business, and residents while 
accommodating existing vehicular use. ACHD is advancing with the design of bikeway facility 
improvements for 11th St from Heron Street to Washington Street in preparation for installation in 
FY2023. CCDC is leading a public engagement process to produce a concept design for 11th 
Street from River Street to Washington Street. This downtown segment of the 11th Street Bikeway 
spans two URD’s (RMOB and Westside) both of which have funding programmed in FY2023 to 
build the infrastructure associated with this bikeway. At its April 2020 Board meeting, the Board 
approved a contract with Kittelson & Associates to assist the Agency with the concept design and 
public engagement process. Interviews with property owners along 11th Street are occurring and 
an online survey and comment map is being used to gather feedback from the public. 

Special Projects 

Media Update: May 2020 Media Report Summary: There were seven articles, all from local 
outlets, covering CCDC in May 2020. The majority of the coverage coming from BoiseDev and 
Idaho Statesman. Articles covered: 

 the potential State Street URD entering the planning and public engagement stages 
 the downtown project with Ball Ventures Ahlquist and Idaho Central Credit Union 
 downtown parking 
 6th Street construction 
 the potential for urban renewal on the Boise Bench 

Public Outreach: Social distancing and restrictions on large gatherings may impact the traditional 
in-person forms of public engagement and outreach activities related to CCDC’s projects in future 
months. In many cases, the Agency needs community input in order to create the most meaningful 
and relevant results. While recent projects have not been impacted, the Agency is looking at 
various tools, procedures, case studies and community examples to prevent important projects 
from stalling and to provide inclusive and effective opportunities to engage with the Agency, learn 
about projects, and provide feedback. 

The current, unique, pandemic-caused situation provides opportunity for innovations and to pilot 
new public engagement methods to reach audiences who may have previously not attended in-
person events. Community outreach activities will be assessed on a project-by-project basis and 
be dependent on the current social distancing recommendations. 

Condominium Associations 

Building Eight Condominiums Association  

Members Percent Interest 

CCDC - Capitol & Myrtle 
Parking Garage 

35% 

Raymond Management 
(Hampton Inn & Suites) 

62.5% 



Page 14 of 16 

Hendricks (retail units 
represented by Colliers 
International) 

2.5% 

Annual Report Due: 
December 31, 2020 

Next Annual Meeting:  
October 7, 2020 

Issues/Comments: No issues 

Front Street Condominium Association:  The neon street sign on the 8th Street side of the 9th 
& Front garage has significant rust and water damage on the metal structure and was removed 
by YESCO on May 10, 2020. 

Members Percent Interest 

CCDC - 9th & Front Parking 
Garage 

25.76% 

GBAD 2.00% 

Aspen Condominiums 52.17% 

Hendricks (retail and office 
units represented by Colliers 
International) 

20.07% 

Annual Report Due: 
November 30, 2020 

Next Annual Meeting: 
October 7, 2020 

Issues/Comments: No issues 

Block 22 Condominium Association 

Members Percent Interest 

CCDC - Capitol & Front 
Parking Garage 

13.30% 

Block 22 (The Grove Hotel, 
CenturyLink Arena) 

86.7% 

Annual Report Due: 
July 31, 2020 

Next Annual Meeting: 
TBD. 

Issues/Comments: 
2019 Annual Meeting 

conducted August 6, 2019. 



Page 15 of 16 

Capitol Terrace Condominium Association:  The Agency is working with Hawkins Companies, 
owner of the Main + Marketplace commercial condominium units, to update condominium 
declarations. Hawkins Companies has completed the Main + Marketplace remodel. 

Members Percent Interest 

CCDC - Capitol & Main 
Parking Garage 

50% 

Hawkins Companies (Main 
+ Marketplace) 

50% 

Annual Report Due: 
February 28, 2020 

Next Annual Meeting: 
October 7, 2020. 

Issues/Comments: 

CCDC and Hawkins 
Companies are discussing 
Hawkins’ proposal to install 

security cameras in the 
common areas. 

Downtown Parking Condominiums Association 

Members Percent Interest 

CCDC - 9th & Main Parking 
Garage 

93.51% 

Les Bois Holdings, LLC 
(commercial unit) 

2.03% 

Eastman Building, LLC 
(commercial units) 

4.46% 

Annual Report Due: 
September 30, 2020 

Next Annual Meeting: 
TBD 

Issues/Comments: No issues. 

ACME Fast Freight Condominium Association 

Members Percent Interest 

CCDC – 11th and Front 
Parking Garage 

30.10% 

BVA 69.90% 



Page 16 of 16 

Issues/Comments: 
Appoint Agency 

representatives to COA 
board. 

 

# # # 



VI. 
EXECUTIVE 

SESSION 



VII. 
ADJOURN 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

END 
 
  


	Board of Commissioners 
	06-08-20 Board Meeting Agenda
	III Consent Agenda 
	CONSENT - Paid Invoice Report May 2020
	CONSENT - 05-18-2020 Board Special Meeting Minutes
	CONSENT - Executive Session - Special Board Meeting May 18, 2020
	CONSENT - FY2020 Q1 Financial Report (unaudited)
	CONSENT - FY2020 Q2 Financial Report (Unaudited)
	CONSENT - Reso 1658- 9100 S Eisenman Road
	IV Action Items
	ACTION - 11th and Main Apartments
	ACTION - Reso 1659 - 1715 W Idaho Street
	ACTION - Reso 1657 - State St Cost Share Application
	V. Information Items
	CCDC Monthly Report - June 8, 2020
	VI. Executive Session
	VII. Adjourn Divider
	End

	Applicant Name: Capital City Development Corporation (CCDC) & City of Boise
	Partnering Agency Contact: Matt Edmond, CCDCZach Piepmeyer, City of Boise
	Prior Applications: N/A
	Notice of Interest: City/CCDC have communicated with the ACHD Project Manager (Cody Homan) beginning at 30% Design in October 2019 about desire to partner on non-transportation components.  
	ACHD Road Project: 2020 Downtown Boise Implementation - HB 312 (Project No. 519044)
	Proposed Non-Transportation Components: 1)  Spare fiber-optic conduit bank on State Street (8th Street to 14th Street).2)  Streetscape elements on State Street (12th Street to 14th Street).  Includes urban concrete streetscape section with street trees, tree grates, silva cell (suspended paving systems), concrete sidewalk/paving between trees, pressurized irrigation system, historic street lights and potentially other streetscape furnishings.  
	Authority: Spare fiber-optic conduit generally approved by ACHD under 2019 Master License Agreement for Installation and Disposition of Utility Transmission Systems.  Section 50-328, Idaho Code.Streetscape:  Section 40-1415 (7), Idaho Code.
	Design: ACHD consultant currently performing design tasks (Precision Engineering) will include non-transportation components in the ACHD design plans.  State (East of 12th to 14th) - ACHD responsible for design costs for sidewalk, storm drain and all streetscape-related design costs incurred to-date.  ACHD responsible for 50% of storm drain design costs and 100% of remaining sidewalk design costs following execution of this cost share agreement.State (8th to 14th) - CCDC responsible for 100% of the fiber-optic conduit design (8th to 14th) and 50% of storm drain design costs (12th to 14th) following execution of this cost share agreement. CCDC has hired Quadrant Consulting to perform fiber-optic conduit design.
	Design - cont'd from prev: 
	 page: 

	Reimburse ACHD for design Costs: CCDC will reimburse ACHD for non-transportation (streetscape and silva cell) design costs upon receipt of invoice detailing non-transportation design costs.  CCDC has hired Quadrant Consulting to design fiber-optic conduit bank.
	Month: August
	Day: 4th
	Year: 20
	Design Costs: 
	Design costs - cont'd from prev: 
	 page: Not anticipated to be any re-design costs.State (East of 12th to 14th) - ACHD responsible for design costs for sidewalk, storm drain and all streetscape-related design costs incurred to-date.  ACHD responsible for 50% of storm drain design costs  following execution of this cost share agreement. CCDC responsible for 100% of streetscape design costs (street trees, tree grates, irrigation, scored sidewalk, street lights) following execution of this cost share agreement.State (8th to 14th) - CCDC responsible for 100% of the non-transportation design costs (8th to 14th) and 50% of storm drain design costs (12th to 14th) following execution of this cost share agreement.  

	Construction: All construction anticipated to be included in the ACHD bid package and constructed by ACHD contractor during the project.  State (East of 12th to 14th) - ACHD responsible for 50% of storm drain construction costs and 100% of sidewalk construction costs.  State (8th to 14th) - CCDC responsible for 100% of the non-transportation construction costs (8th to 14th) and 50% of storm drain construction costs (12th to 14th).   
	Reimburse ACHD for Construction Costs: CCDC will reimburse ACHD for non-transportation construction costs upon receipt of invoice detailing non-transportation construction costs.  
	Construction Costs: 
	Construction Costs - cont'd from prev: 
	 page: State (East of 12th to 14th) - ACHD and CCDC each responsible for 50% of storm drain construction costs. CCDC responsible for 100% of streetscape construction costs, including: street trees, frames, tree grates, and irrigation; street lights and electrical power supply; scored concrete sidewalk. ACHD will credit CCDC for the cost of standard 6' concrete sidewalk in this section.State (8th to 14th) - CCDC responsible for 100% of the non-transportation component construction costs (fiber-optic conduit and vaults). 

	Acquisition of Real Property: No R/W acquisition anticipated for non-transportation project components.  
	Acquisition of Real Property - cont'd from prev: 
	 page: 

	Relocation of Utilities: It is unknown if any utilities will need to be relocated for non-transportation components.  Should utilities need to be relocated to accommodate construction on non-transportation components, CCDC shall be notified immediately and design or construction work shall cease until a resolution on utility relocation can be achieved.  
	Relocation of Utilities - cont'd from prev: 
	 page: 

	Name: John Brunelle
	Position: Executive Director
	Date: June 8, 2020


